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Financial Highlight
BRE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue reduced by 18.4% to approximately HK$182.8
million

Revenue from mortgage loan receivables decreased by
22.1% to approximately HK$118.6 million

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders decreased by
13.3% to approximately HK$93.1 million

Net profit margin increased by 3.1 percentage points to
51.0%

Basic earnings per share is HK4.8 cents

Gross pawn loan receivables decreased by 6.3% to
approximately HK$132.9 million

Gross mortgage loan receivables decreased by 29.6% to
approximately HK$801.2 million

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

4

Total amount of new pawn loans granted decreased by
11.7% to approximately HK$660.9 million

Average amount of pawn loans granted increased by 8.6%
to approximately HK$10,100 per transaction

Number of new pawn loans (larger than HK$100,000)
granted decreased by 19.7% to 437 cases

Total amount of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
22.9% to approximately HK$392.1 million

Average amount of mortgage loans granted decreased by
6.9% to approximately HK$2.7 million

Number of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
18.8% to 143 cases

Net interest margin for pawn loans decreased by 0.8
percentage points to 40.2%

Net interest margin for mortgage loans increased by 0.5
percentage points to 10.0%

As at 28 February 2021, the average loan-to-value ratio of
the mortgage loan portfolio was kept at around 50%
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Five-year Financial Summary
A FUBEHE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F —ZZ% —ENF —EN\F —E—+fF
Profitability data (HK$'000) ZERIgENEE (FEx)
Revenue from pawn loan MEERER W=
business
— Interest income from pawn - BEEZRZFS
loans L/ON 8,171 10,213 7,843 58,754 61,808
— Interest income from pawn - AT (EF ABHE
loan receivables at fair value ~ ZEWHEEETZ
through profit or loss FEWA 48,002 54,264 51,351 - -
- Gain on disposal of - HELKEEEY
repossessed assets Wi 8,024 7,266 6,914 6,107 4,801
Total revenue from pawn loan — BE & RER 2 Bl
business 64,197 71,743 66,108 64,861 66,609
Revenue from mortgage loan  RIBEAEHER 2 I
business
— Interest income from - RIBERER
mortgage loans ZFBHA 118,571 152,216 158,655 152,415 148,541
Total revenue il 182,768 223,959 224,763 217,276 215,150
Operating profit R 133,005 166,649 163,572 158,162 157,647
Profit attributable to equity IR LR T
shareholders 93,144 107,383 100,820 100,908 103,230
Earnings per share — basic FREF - EAR (L)
(HK cents) 4.8 5.5 5.1 4.8 49
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)
Operating profit margin RN = 72.8 74.4 72.8 72.8 73.3
Net profit margin LRI 51.0 47.9 449 46.4 48.0
Effective tax rate (Note 1) ERBIR (M) 16.9 16.3 17.1 16.4 16.4
Return on total assets (Note 2) ZBE&FAMEIR (F5F2) 7.6 7.5 7.0 6.9 7.6
Return on shareholders’ equity AR EREzS B3R (HizE3)
(Note 3) 9.8 12.0 12.3 12.8 14.0
Net interest margin (Note 4) %2 (HizH4) 13.7 13.1 12.4 13.1 145
— pawn loans - BEER 40.2 41.0 40.6 40.4 40.3
- mortgage loans - RIBERER 10.0 9.5 9.2 9.8 10.8
Note 1 Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by  FMfiF1 EBEAESMEENSEE 2 VAT ER KB A
the profit before taxation for the respective year Y
Note 2 Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year  [ffsF2 EBELRELORIIZERN NGNS FENEEE
by the total assets as at the respective year it E
Note 3 Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by  Mf33 #REMIVIZENEFB AR EE 2 ERE%ET
the total equity as at the respective year i
Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income  MisF4 FRZFEEREAEBEEHBEERLIRBEIE

ERZMBMARBRBERAS  BRAFREEE
Rz AR E SRR TR

in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the
respective finance costs, divided by the average of month-end
gross loan receivables balances of the corresponding loans during
the year

Annual Report 2021 — T = —F &£ 5



Five-year Financial Summary

hFEHBHE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F —ZC% —T-NEF —T-N\E ZT—+F
Operating ratios (as a e E (hikaE
percentage of revenue) (%) HBZLt) (%)
Staff costs BTHA 15.9 13.6 13.0 12.9 12.6
Rental expenses plus depreciationf & B sz 3 hif f 4
of right-of-use assets BEENE 7.2 5.9 6.2 6.2 6.0
Advertising and promotions BEREE 1.7 1.8 4.4 5.2 5.4
Assets and liabilities data BEREERE
(HK$'000) (F#&x)
Non-current assets FERBEE 63,993 143,074 84,131 89,242 94,665
Current assets MENEE 1,155,499 1,285,273 1,357,172 1,376,892 1,269,878
Current liabilities nEaE 178,866 356,662 455,909 515,477 489,334
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 91,773 176,366 162,565 162,528 136,773
Capital and reserves Eiﬂiliﬁﬁﬁ% 948,853 895,319 822,829 788,129 738,436
Gross loan receivables - principal FEM ER4A%E - K& 934,097 1,279,143 1,364,806 1,382,962 1,294,193
— Gross pawn loan receivables - Mﬂzﬁﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬂ@ 132,901 141,815 141,511 130,866 143,140
~ Gross mortgage loan - BURBERER
receivables b 801,196 1,137,328 1,223,295 1,252,096 1,151,053
Assets and working capital EERZEELESHE
data
Current ratios (Note 5) MENLLZE (BIEE5) 6.5 3.6 3.0 2.7 2.6
Gearing ratios (%) (Note 6) fEE L& (%) (FHEE6) 26.2 55.2 73.6 84.4 80.8
Net assets value per share (HK$) SREEFE (BL)
(Note 7) (PH3E7) 0.491 0.462 0.424 0.377 0.345

Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current  Fi3E5 RENLENIERERZ RBEAER U RS & &S
liabilities as at the respective year end =}

Note 6 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation  FffzF6
of bank loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases,
other loans, loans from immediate holding company and debt
securities issued) by total equity as at the respective year end

Note 7 Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by — Ff&F7
the total number of shares as at the respective year end
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Five-year Financial Summary
T FMBHE
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Five-year Financial Summary

FEPEBRE

Return on shareholders’ equity
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Chairman Statement
EEH|E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “our
Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2021 (“"FY2021").

During the year, the Group recorded revenue and profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$182.8 million and 93.1 million respectively. During the
year, local loan demand fell as the market is of the view that
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic will still
be a hurdle on the path to recovery of economy. Enterprises
remain cautious and decide to reduce the scale of expansion or
even postpone expansion plans until they see the reopen of the
economy. The Group will therefore continue to adopt a prudent
strategy when granting loans, in order to maintain a healthy
portfolio and strengthen its risk management measures. With the
increase in global vaccination coverage, it is expected to see an
economic rebound in the years ahead. The Group remains positive
about the prospect of our mortgage and pawn loan businesses.
We will continue to explore and seize the new business
opportunities to further create value for our shareholders in the
long run.

Meanwhile, the Group sees opportunities with the tightening of
regulatory measures for money lenders. Currently, the Companies
Registry has imposed additional licensing conditions and it is
expected that it will be more difficult for money lenders to get
a new/renew license. We believe that, being one of the few
listed financial institutions in Hong Kong, our Group will be more
competitive and is well-prepared to capture the opportunity to
expand its market share in the industry.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the unremitting efforts of our management team and
employees. | remain deeply grateful for having the team who are
still walking side by side on stormy days to maintain sustainable
performance. We will continue to seize opportunities and strive to
create the best interests for our shareholders and the Company.

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman and Executive Director

26 May 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a financing service provider in Hong Kong operating
under the brand name of “Oi Wah", principally engaged in
providing secured financing, including mortgage loans and pawn
loans.

MORTGAGE LOAN BUSINESS

In FY2021, the mortgage loan business remained a major source
of income of the Group. Revenue generated from the mortgage
loan business in FY2021 accounted for approximately 64.9% of
the Group’s total revenue during the year. Given the outbreak
of the pandemic of COVID-19 and the subsequent decline of
the global and local economies, the local loan demand has been
weakened. During the year, the revenue from the mortgage loan
business decreased from approximately HK$152.2 million for
the year ended 29 February 2020 (“FY2020") to approximately
HK$118.6 million in FY2021, representing a decrease of 22.1%
or approximately HK$33.6 million. The gross mortgage loan
receivables was approximately HK$801.2 million as at 28 February
2021 with the total new mortgage loans granted amounted to
approximately HK$392.1 million in FY2021. During the year, net
interest margin of the mortgage loan business increased by 0.5%
to approximately 10.0% (FY2020: approximately 9.5%). During
the year, there were 143 new cases of mortgage loan transactions,
with average loan size of approximately HK$2.7 million.

10 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited 82 %= SR AR A T

EEOE

AEBRIARE | mE2BEREKE ZBMERS
HER TENFRUARARE (BERBERE
RMHEER) x5 -

RBEFERER
RIBERBEREBNAREE 2T ERAKR - = F
T FYBFEIRBIRBERERFREEA
EEFRNAWREEH64.9% - 2019FBRFESHEIS
MR 2R R A A E T8 8155 7T R ERE
Ko FR ZBEREREBMEREREE "=
EFEZAZHNBALEFE ([ ZE-ZFHMREE])
#3152,200,00078 7T 4 22.1% 8 #933,600,0005 7T
ECE - —FHHFEL118,600,0008 T R _F
T—FZAZHNH BRIZBEBEERLENA
801,200,000870 R - - —FHBFEHIEN
IR B A EEA 2392,100,0008 7T ° F A » 1%
BEREREBFEELIN0.5%E410.0% (=
S_TEBEE H9.5% ) o FR - KREBHLEE
14A3RBERBEBEERR S FTHERESELN A
2,700,000/ 7T




Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RR DM

In FY2021, the Group continued to adopt a prudent and cautious
approach when granting loans, as well as maintained a higher
proportion of first mortgage loans in the Group’s portfolio to
manage risk. During the year, the loan-to-value ratio for the first
mortgage is around 48.9%, while the overall loan-to-value ratio
for subordinary mortgage is around 59.2%, of which, loan-to-
value ratio of subordinary mortgage that the Group participate in
is around 8.7 %.

PAWN LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2021, the revenue from the pawn loan business
decreased from approximately HK$71.7 million to approximately
HK$64.2 million, representing a decrease of 10.5% or
approximately HK$7.5 million. The aggregate pawn loan amount
decreased by 11.7% or approximately HK$87.6 million from
approximately HK$748.5 million in FY2020 to approximately
HK$660.9 million in FY2021. The decrease was mainly attributed
to the impact of COVID-19 on foot traffic. In response to this,
the Group is currently developing a mobile app to capture
opportunities for online pawn loan service.

During the year, the Group continued to channel resources
to advertising and promotion to enhance the Group's brand
exposure. Such effort has generated demand for one-to-one pawn
loan appointment services for pawn loans exceeding HK$0.1
million. Thus, the average loan amount increased to approximately
HK$10,200 per transaction (FY2020: approximately HK$9,300 per
transaction).

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

During the year, the prices and transaction volumes of the private
housing market in Hong Kong remained stable despite the
uncertainty of COVID-19 outbreak. According to the figures from
the Rating and Valuation Department, the price index for lived-
in homes in the first quarter of 2021 resumed its upward trend,
mainly due to the gradual retreat of the COVID-19 outbreak. The
economy is expected to recover further, and the conditions are
right to unlock the accumulated demand for home ownership.
The Board is of the view that the low interest rate environment
will continue to support the local home prices. During the year,
the government has announced the abolition of Double Stamp
Duty (DSD) for non-residential property transactions and a pilot
scheme for charging land premiums at standard rates for lease
modifications for redevelopment of industrial buildings (IBs),
however, the Board is still conservative of the industrial and
commercial properties market. Therefore, the Group will remain
cautious for the valuation of such type of properties when
granting loans, in order to maintain a prudent risk management.

R-ZB-_—FHBRFE AEERNERERFEER
MBEEEZRE YN AKENHEE T EF L
ZERBEMERAEERR - FR  F-ZBZ
EREHELELNR48.9%  MARBIRIBZ ERBER
HAEL XA R59.2%  HRAREBLF 2R RIR
Bz EREHELERLYRBT7% °

HEEREK

REZZBZ—FPRFE HEEREBABRERD
71,700,000/ 78 4> 10.5% 5% 497,500,000 7T £ 4
64,200,000 7 - HEERBEARA S _TFHHF
[E#9748,500,000% 7T 4> 11.7 %3k #987,600,000/%
TE T - —FHHRFEH660,900,0008 7T < @
TEBHR2019E MRS HEARBTE - Blt - A
SERFAZERBDEAREN  WILERE ERZEFR
TEEOHEE o

FR-AEEEESHERNES REBMEAASE
B2 mEBNE KN EE 100,0008 LA FHAE
Bz — 8 —HMEERBHORBE K -Al FHE
REBENEFTRLHH10,2008 7T ( —E=ZF8
BFEE - BRXH#%9,30087T) °

e

FR-BE2019ERESHRBEZEIDRR - FELA
FETSNBERRZENRIFIRE - RIEZMYE
HEENHT — T —FE-FTEEEEEMNER
BHIRE LB DEEHN20198 KBS HEIE
BHRE - EEERE—SEE BHEZRNERS
KiFHEe—REAZ -BEFER S BNXRELHE
SXEMWEE - FA BRACSEMEUEFEEYER
SHVEBENER - WHEH S HERTEKRE
MEAERIRREERHNE A EFSHIH
EMETSDFRTREE - Bt AEEREHER
RS B XN A ERFEEREE  URFEREA

eI -

Annual Report 2021 — T = —F &£ 11



Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RmR DM

Regarding the pawn loan business, the Group is of the view that
luxurious goods market and international gold prices will remain
positive and that its pawn loan business will remain stable.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our Group's revenue reduced from approximately HK$224.0
million for the FY2020 to approximately HK$182.8 million for the
FY2021, representing a decrease of approximately HK$41.2 million
or 18.4%. The decrease was attributable to the decrease in our
interest income from mortgage business by approximately HK$33.6
million or 22.1% from approximately HK$152.2 million in FY2020
to approximately HK$118.6 million in FY2021 and the decrease in
our revenue from pawn loan business by approximately HK$7.5
million or 10.5% from approximately HK$71.7 million in FY2020
to approximately HK$64.2 million in FY2021.

Mortgage loan business

The decrease in our interest income from mortgage business was
mainly due to the fact that under the global outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has adopted a more cautious
approach in granting our mortgage loan during FY2021. Moreover,
as most of our customers are SMEs, they preferred to reduce their
debt equity ratio in this gloominess situation. As such, the average
month end balance for the gross mortgage loans receivables for
the year decreased from approximately HK$1,220.3 million in
FY2020 to approximately HK$992.5 million in FY2021 with total
new mortgage loans granted of approximately HK$392.1 million
during FY2021 (FY2020: approximately HK$508.8 million).

Pawn loan business

The decrease in our pawn loan business was due to the decrease
in our interest income earned on our pawn loan receivables by
approximately HK$8.3 million or 12.9% from approximately
HK$64.5 million in FY2020 to approximately HK$56.2 million
in FY2021, netting off the increase in revenue from disposal of
repossessed assets by approximately HK$0.7 million.

The decrease in our interest income earned on our pawn loan
receivables was primarily attributable to the outbreak of COVID-19
during FY2021. As our customers need to visit our pawn shops
for pawning goods, less people going out caused less business
opportunities. Therefore, the aggregated amounts of pawn
loan granted decreased from approximately HK$748.5 million in
FY2020 to approximately HK$660.9 million in FY2021 and the
average month end balance for the gross pawn loans receivables
for the year decreased from approximately HK$156.5 million in
FY2020 to approximately HK$139.6 million in FY2021.
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Revenue from disposal of repossessed assets represents the gain/
(loss) of the Group as we sold the repossessed assets in the event
of default in repayment of our pawn loans. The increase in our
gain on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2021 was mainly due
to the increase of the gold price per ounce from around US$1,600
in February 2020 to around US$2,050 in August 2020 and
maintain at around US$1,900 in the second half of FY2021. Since
every pawn loan has a loan term of four lunar months, revenue
was derived from the appreciation of gold price in FY2021 and
thus the increase in gain on disposal of repossessed assets in
FY2021 was recorded.

Other revenue

Other revenue increased from approximately HK$3.4 million in
FY2020 to approximately HK$7.9 million in FY2021, representing
an increase of approximately HK$4.5 million or 132.4%, which
was mainly due to (i) the receipt of a one-off subsidy from The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the Anti-Epidemic Fund for relieving financial burdens of
the businesses of approximately HK$2.1 million; (ii) an increase
in our credit-related fee income by approximately HK$0.6 million
representing early repayment fees and handling charges from our
mortgage loan customers; and (iii) rent concession received from
landlords due to COVID-19 of approximately HK$0.7 million.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses decreased by approximately HK$3.1 million
or 5.3% from approximately HK$58.7 million in FY2020 to
approximately HK$55.6 million in FY2021.

During FY2021, staff costs slightly decreased by approximately
HK$1.3 million or 4.3% from approximately HK$30.4 million in
FY2020 to approximately HK$29.1 million in FY2021. The decrease
was mainly contributed by the decrease in the salaries and other
benefits to staff of approximately HK$0.6 million.

According to HKFRS 16, all operating lease with contract terms
of more than 1 year should be treated as finance lease. Thus, the
contractual liabilities for the rental agreements are discounted
and recognised as finance lease assets. Rental expenses and
depreciation for right-to-use assets remained at approximately
HK$13.2 million in both FY2021 and FY2020.

Apart from staff costs, rental expenses and depreciation for right-
to-use assets as mentioned above, other operating expenses
decreased by approximately HK$1.8 million or 11.9% from
approximately HK$15.1 million in FY2020 to approximately
HK$13.3 million in FY2021. This was mainly due to the decrease
in advertising expenses and legal and professional fees by
approximately HK$1.0 million and HK$0.4 million respectively.
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Finance costs

During the year, the finance costs decreased by approximately
HK$17.5 million or 45.6% from approximately HK$38.4 million
in FY2020 to approximately HK$20.9 million in FY2021. It was
mainly due to the decrease in bank loans and overdrafts, other
loans and loans from the immediate holding company in FY2021.

Charged for impairment losses on loan receivables
For FY2021

The charge for impairment losses on loan receivables of
approximately HK$2.0 million in FY2021 was measured based on
the requirement under HKFRS 9. The charge for impairment losses
represented a further impairment made to a mortgage loan (same
mortgage loan impaired in FY2019) which had been overdue for
more than 1 year and the management considered there is an
increasing possibility which the valuation of the collateral of the
respective loan cannot fully cover the outstanding amount.

For FY2020

The charge for impairment losses on loan receivables of
approximately HK$2.0 million in FY2020 was measured based on
the requirement under HKFRS 9. The charge for impairment losses
represented a further impairment made to a mortgage loan (same
mortgage loan impaired in FY2019) which had been overdue for
more than 1 year and the management considered there is an
increasing possibility which the valuation of the collateral of the
respective loan cannot fully cover the outstanding amount.

Income tax expenses

Our Group's effective tax rate increased from approximately 16.3%
in FY2020 to approximately 16.9% in FY2021. The increase was
mainly due to additional assessment amounted of approximately
HK$0.8 million, which is due to part of the advertising expenses
in previous years were subsequently disqualified as deductible
expense by Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our Group's profit for FY2021 decreased to approximately
HK$93.1 million from approximately HK$107.4 million in FY2020,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$14.3 million or
13.3%. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
revenue by approximately HK$41.2 million, netting off with the
increase in other revenue of approximately HK$4.5 million and
decrease in finance costs amounted to approximately HK$17.5
million.
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Liquidity and financial resources

During FY2021, the Group's operational and capital requirements
were financed principally through retained earnings, bank loans
and overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding company, other
loans and debt securities issued. Throughout FY2021, there was
no material or significant impact of COVID-19 on the Group's
liquidity and financial resources.

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operation,
the Group's future operations and capital requirements will be
mainly financed through bank loans and overdrafts, loans from
the immediate holding company, other loans, retained earnings
and share capital. There were no significant commitments for
capital expenditure as at 28 February 2021.

As at 28 February 2021, cash and cash equivalents (net of
bank overdraft) amounted to approximately HK$245.3 million,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$189.6 million as
compared to the position as at 29 February 2020. The increase
was attributable to the following items:

RBEERUBER

R-ZB-_—FHBFE ARBEZ2EREAREE
ZEBREBEN ROTEFREX BEBRZERQIRZ
B EMERRERTEFEABENES -R_F
T —FHBEFERESE 20198 REEREAEE
RBEE MU BERLBEASLERTE -

HEBRAEEB R NTEHEEKT  AEBZAEEE
MEABREKEEEBRBRTERREY -HBIERA
AZER EMER RBAFEBABELGES R
TE-—F A+ N \H BESRKERFAIAE-

RIZE-—F-A-+N\H BehkBRLEEY (K
HMBRIBITIE S ) #9/5245,300,0008 7 B T - T4
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For the year

For the year

ended 28 ended 29

February 2021 February 2020

BZE BZE

—EZ—-F —ETF

Z—A=+NBLk —A=-t+hBIE

FE FE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Net cash generated from operating activities 4G A 3 BB 30 S v 471,661 243 347

Payment for the purchase of plant and BERERLE Y 28

equipment (50) (266)

Net repayment of other loans B2 BIFE (100,800) (141,120)

Net repayment of bank loans RITERCBFFE (55,591) (8,229)
Net (repayment)/proceed in loans from the HEZRATI B (8

immediate holding compan .

g company R) S FSRIEFRE (56,500) 10,000

Payment for repurchase of shares BEEINRS  Z1E (1,736) _

Dividend paid BB (37.874) (34,893)

Finance costs paid BRAEE A (20,532) (37,229)

Government subsidy received B U T BL 2102 B

Other net outflow H s F (11,104) (12,033)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents He MIReSEYIEINFEE 189,576 19,577
Pledge of assets BERA

As at 28 February 2021, the Group had pledged its mortgage loan R =—F=—FZA =+ /\A - AKEEEMAKE

receivables with net book value of approximately HK$304.3 million
(29 February 2020: HK$308.7 million) for the purpose of obtaining
facilities from banks and other independent third parties.

SFEX)A304,300,0008 0 (ZE=EF A=+
H : 308,700,000 T ) 2 FEWUIZ B I IF EF - LAJEER
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Contingent liabilities

There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at

RZEBE-—F A+ B AEETEIMEKNS

28 February 2021. NAafE-
Key financial ratios ERMBLEE
As at As at
28 February 29 February
2021 2020
» S
—EC--F —T_TF
—H=+NH —A=+h8
Current ratio™ MENEL ZE M 6.5x 3.6x
Gearing ratio? BELE® 26.2% 55.2%
For the For the
year ended year ended
28 February 29 February
2021 2020
BZE HE
—E-— —E-EF
—AZ+NBE Z—A=-thBI1t
FE FE
Return on total assets® BEBERR 7.6% 7.5%
Return on equity® Mz EIR@ 9.8% 12.0%
Net profit margin® HEA| R 51.0% 47.9%
Net interest margin® FEEO 13.7% 13.1%
— pawn loan services — BEERARE 40.2% 41.0%
- mortgage loan services — BB E AR 10.0% 9.5%
Notes: Bt -

()

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current
liabilities as at the respective year end.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation

of bank loans and overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding
company, other loans and debt securities issued) by total equity as

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by

Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the

Net profit margin is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the

Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in
respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the respective
finance costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan
receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

(2)
at the respective year end.
(3)
the total assets as at the respective year end.
4)
total equity as at the respective year end.
(5)
turnover for the respective year.
(6)
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Current ratio

Our Group's current ratio increased from approximately 3.6 times
as at 29 February 2020 to approximately 6.5 times as at 28
February 2021, which was mainly due to the decrease in other
loans, bank loans and overdrafts and loans from the immediate
holding company that were amounted to approximately HK$100.8
million, HK$88.9 million and HK$56.5 million respectively, and
was offset by the increase in current debt securities issued of
approximately HK$75.0 million.

Gearing ratio

Our Group's gearing ratio decreased from approximately 55.2%
as at 29 February 2020 to approximately 26.2% as at 28 February
2021, which was mainly triggered by the decrease in other loans,
bank loans and overdrafts and loans from the immediate holding
company which were amounted to approximately HK$100.8
million, HK$88.9 million and HK$56.5 million respectively as a
result of the decrease of our mortgage loan portfolio.

Return on total assets and return on equity

Our return on total assets slightly increased from approximately
7.5% in FY2020 to 7.6% in FY2021. No material change was
noted.

Our return on equity decreased from approximately 12.0% in
FY2020 to approximately 9.8% in FY2021. This was mainly
due to the decrease in gearing ratio during FY2021. In view of
the current volatile market conditions, the management of the
Company decided to adopt a more prudent strategy in granting
new loans and thus less funding was required during FY2021. This
led to a drop in the Group’s borrowings and thereby limited the
available funds of the Group to lend to our customers. As such,
the Group's return on equity decreased in FY2021 notwithstanding
the positive net interest margin of the Group.

Net profit margin and net interest margin

There was an increase in our net profit margin and net interest
margin from approximately 47.9% and 13.1% in FY2020 to
approximately 51.0% and 13.7% in FY2021 respectively. The
reason for such an increase was mainly due to the decrease in
finance cost by approximately HK$17.5 million during FY2021.

FEhtE =R
AREBRBLERA T -_TF-_A -+ NLBH3.6/Z
A EZE A+ N \BL65E TIFER
REMEF - RITEREEIUANKEBEBITR AR
MEFHEFRTRAL - 55 A£%49100,800,000/%8 7T
88,900,000/8 JLA156,500,00058 7T » I 1% 2 31T B
BT HIL I14975,000,00078 T AT 8 ©

&R
AEBEBELNER - E - TF _-_F -+ NHH552%
THREZZE-Z—F-A=-+N\B#262% JHIETEH
REMER RITERREIUARKRBEBIER AR
MERHEBFTRD - 975 A%#100,800,000% 7T *
88,900,00078 7T ~ 56,500,000/ ¢ * T EHNIZIEIE
HEZAERD -

B E R 3R % 5 ) 3R
AEBEERBEORA _T_TFPRFENT 5%
EHIEME—Z - —FHRFEZ7.6% LEHES

AEBREELOHHE _T -_TFPHFELN12.0%8D
BT —FHRFENIB% ~WIHEBHR-E
T FHMBREEZEELERTRAE - ERX B AR
BE ARRERBERENEITE S RNEEE
R W _Z_—FUBRFEMTESRD - BT
HAKEZEETE® Rl TAKEANRETFEFPZE
oA BEAKBIFEZHRBLEE  EAKE
BEBIRN T —FHBRFERD

WRERRFEEE

BN RMENFEEZEDRHA S _SFTRFE
BIHIA7 9% K131 %ENE - —FHBRFEND
51.0%%13.7% - ZEEFEHR - - —FHPHF
&R BT AR 2 4917,500,00078 7T °

Annual Report 2021 — T = —F &£ 17



Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RmR DM

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2021, our Group had a total of 51 staff
(29 February 2020: 50). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$29.1 million for FY2021
(FY2020: approximately HK$30.4 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Bonus based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include a share option scheme and contributions
to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme to our Group’s
employees in Hong Kong.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Company will
continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year ended 28 February 2021, there was no material
and significant dispute between the Company and its employees,
customers and/or other stakeholders.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business activities of the Group were denominated in HKD.
The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risks during FY2021. As the impact
from foreign exchange exposure was minimal, the Directors were
of the view that no hedging against foreign currency exposure
was necessary and the Group currently has not used derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange risk. In view
of the operational needs, the Group will continue to monitor the
foreign currency exposure from time to time and take necessary
actions to minimise the exchange related risks.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Our Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or disposals
during FY2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any present plans for material investments and capital assets.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, it is expected that local enterprises, especially
SMEs, will remain cautious for future expansion until they see
a sustainable recovery of COVID-19 and resumption of vital
economic activities. In response to this, the Group will continue to
strengthen its risk management measures, such as increasing the
proportion of first mortgage loans, further tightening the loan-
to-value ratio, adopting a more cautious approach when granting
loans in order to maintain financial stability of the Group and wait
for market recovery.

Currently, the Companies Registry has implemented additional
licensing conditions for money lenders. With the tightening of
regulatory measures, the number of money lender licenses might
slightly drop in the future. We believe that, being one of the
few listed financial institutions in Hong Kong, Oi Wah will be
more competitive and the Group is well-prepared to capture the
opportunity to expand its market share in the industry.

In addition, COVID-19 has changed consumers behavior, where
people stayed at home and boosted up “Home Economies”.
It is important for the Group to keep abreast with the latest
technology and innovation. Therefore, we are currently developing
a mobile app to capture the opportunity of the online pawn
loan market. The mobile app aims to make the pawning process
simpler and more accessible for everyone, everywhere. We believe
that such 24/7 service allows the Group to cater the needs of the
busy generation, as well as to promote our pawn loan business at
a lower cost.
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Reportof the Directors
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The Board is pleased to submit this report of the Directors
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 28 February 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing secured financing business in
Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2021 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 67
to 156 of this annual report.

CASH FLOW POSITION

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 28
February 2021 is set out and analysed in the consolidated cash
flow statement set out on pages 71 to 72 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

At our Board meeting held on 26 May 2021 (the “Board
Meeting”), our Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of HK0.64 cents per ordinary
share. In addition, during the Board Meeting, our Directors
also recommended the payment of a special dividend (the
“Special Dividend"”) of HK0.48 cents per ordinary share to the
Shareholders in recognition of their continuous support to the
Company.

The Final Dividend and the Special Dividend, together with the
interim dividend of HK0.81 cents per share declared and paid
during FY2021, represent 40.0% of the profit attributable to the
Shareholders for FY2021.

The Final Dividend and the Special Dividend are subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM and will be paid on
Thursday, 19 August 2021 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of our Company at the close
of business on Monday, 9 August 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the identity of our Shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 23 July 2021. The register of members of our Company will
be closed from Monday, 26 July 2021 to Thursday, 29 July 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered.

In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders of our
Company who are entitled to the Final Dividend and the Special
Dividend, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with our Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 August 2021.
The register of members of our Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 4 August 2021 to Monday, 9 August 2021, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 8 of this
annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$93.1
million (2020: HK$107.4 million) has been transferred to reserves.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 28 February 2021, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of the Company was approximately HK$378.4 million
(2020: approximately HK$413.4 million).

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 28 February 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the
year ended 28 February 2021 are set out in note 24(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder on 19 February 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to them to promote the success of the business of the Group.
The Board may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme to any employee (full-time and part-time),
consultant, adviser, Director (including executive, non-executive
or independent non-executive Director), Substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)), distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of any member of the Group whom the Board determines have
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

As at 28 February 2021, being the financial year end of FY2021
for the Group:

) a total of 40,000,000 options to subscribe for shares
were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme,
representing approximately 2.1% of the total issued shares
of the Company as at 28 February 2021;

ii) an option granted under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof; and

iii) the Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 18
February 2023.

The aggregate number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No option
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exceeded.
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The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
as from the Adoption Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares
of the Company issuable upon exercise of options which have
been granted but which have lapsed in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all shares of
the Company in issue upon 12 March 2013 (the “Listing Date")
(i.e. 40,000,000 shares). The limit of 10% may be refreshed at
any time by approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting provided that the total number of the shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the maximum number of shares underlying the options
granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1.0%
of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being.

A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on the exercise of an
option at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall
be at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is offered to a participant, which
must be a business date (the “Offer Date”); (b) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value
of a share of the Company on the Offer Date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof. The
Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 18 February 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, no options had been granted
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 28 February
2021 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chart Man

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
Mr. Ng Siu Hong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam On Tai
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
Dr. Yip Ngai

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”) and code provision A.4.2
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company and will be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Chart Man,
Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM are
set out in the circular sent to the shareholders of the Company
together with this annual report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2021, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO"):

TERRARORAEARRG 2ERm R
KRB

RZE-_—F-_A=-+N\B BESETXLRFEET
BABRTA AR BRIEES KBS ([#F
RHEE A ) E336FABTFE 2 ERMATREE - A
TAL(BEZFRARREZTHRABRIN) RARF]
&t RABBERO P ERSIAR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares (Note 2)
BRABRBD
RRATE/ e 15 LEREA (Mat2)
Kwan Lik Holding Limited Beneficial interest 1,345,887,024 69.65
(Note 1) (Hat 1) Banfks
Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited (Note 1) (fifzt 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,345,887,024 69.65
REEEE 2
TMF (Cayman) Limited (Note 1) (##71) Trustee 1,345,887,024 69.65
(Note 3) (H1iE3) XA
Ms. Chan Nga Yu (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,345,887,024 69.65
BRI+ (HaE3) BEEEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
B4 A\ A 2
Ms. Mui Hang Sin (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,345,887,024 69.65
B E T (faE3) BEEEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
it A HF R A 2 a
Great Roc Capital Limited (Note 4) ({/i#4)  Beneficial interest 193,106,029 9.99
EnfEn
Mr. Yan Kam Cheong (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 193,106,029 9.99

RESKE (Hit4) NREEE L s

Notes:

1. The 1,345,887,024 shares is held by Kwan Lik Holding Limited,
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TMF (Cayman) Limited.

2. There were 1,932,372,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 28
February 2021.

3. These 1,345,887,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga
Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan Chart
Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the trust.

4. Great Roc Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yan Kam Cheong
who is the substantial Shareholder of the Company.

GES

1. Kwan Lik Holding Limited$% 74 1,345,887,024 % 8% 17 °
Kwan Lik Holding Limited/&Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited
ZEEMBAT MKwan Lik (BVI) Limited] ATMF
(Cayman) Limitedz 2 &K B AR -

2. RZE-Z—F-_A-_+N B AQ2FBE BT
1,932,372,406f% %15 °

3. #%1,345,887,0248 0 BV EREHE - Max(E
225 ATMF (Cayman) Limitedf&## B Kwan Lik
Holding Limitedz 2 &2 #ITRA - BRAEEI 2+ 1§
Bt BRERS A BRI XSEE REF L+ R
B+ KRR A RZETZBIEREA

4. Great Roc Capital LimitedF R IES L E2EHA
REETERADAZEZRE -
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Save as disclosed herein, as at 28 February 2021, there was no
other person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as having an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register,
whose record is required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 28 February 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, are set out below:

BRAEMEEEIN R_TE_—F_A-+/\B &
EXNARAETETHRABRA  BREAQFREES
KB GAIFE336IFATFEZECMARCE L&
H AL (EFHARBEZTHABRIN RER
AR SRR P REERTOXE

EERROREERD 2EZRAR

RIZ-—F_A-+\R SEFRARAEET
BABARFEEE B ZBEARARNR ] SRS
(EEREFLHEGRMIEXVER) 2B - HEER
DR EHFTHHEBRIEEZ LB RGIEXVERFH 7 M E
8O EMAMEARRA LRz EGE RR (BRER
BRESMNEROERGEXEREFRRREEG 21
BmEAR)  BARBE S M E RIS 35216 BHAZ
RFTEERMAZBEAR  IRBE LT ARES
EITREHFRH 2 AFETRBRE AR A LB 3 F 2 1
s ORBEIIET -

Interest in the shares of the Company RAR R RS 2 R
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 2)
BMARsRKRE DL
BEHA HEmME TEREE (HieE2)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,345,887,024 69.65
PREIS S (BaET) RI5ErtER
Beneficial interest 53,477,564 2.77
Bam i
Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,345,887,024 69.65
BREC ST (M7t 1) RIEErtER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
i A RERE 2R
As administrator of the estate of
Chan Kit Yu 1,399,364,588 72.42
ERRERE < EETIEA
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,345,887,024 69.65
PREF 22+ (Kat1) RIEErtER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77
Eifth A 2E[EEE 2 s
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,345,887,024 69.65
PREE Rt (KatT) [ e
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.77

Bt AKFFHB 2 #m

26 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B EEEERERE QT



Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Notes:

1. These 1,345,887,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga
Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan Chart
Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the trust.

2. There were 1,932,372,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 28
February 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or were required pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 28
February 2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no other contracts of significance between
the Group or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

There were also no contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Group or any of its subsidiaries by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

1. %1,345,887,0240% /1 A — VS E7THER - M %lE
L2 ZFEATMF (Cayman) Limited@ 5 %A Kwan Lik
Holding Limitedz 2 &8 1T « FRIEHI 2L L - 16
Bzt BRERSE BREEE BREFS TR
ERLZ L EREBEREEBZETZIBZEA

2. RZEZ—F A=+ NB AAREFT
1,932,372,4068% %17 °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a
party and in which any director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During the year under review, no Director has interests in any
business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting each year. The remuneration of the
executive Directors is subject to review by the remuneration
committee, and their remuneration is determined with reference
including but not limited to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors.
As for the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, their remuneration is determined by the Board
upon recommendation from the remuneration committee. Details
of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 10 and
the five highest paid individuals are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreements.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the letters of
appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with members of the Group
that is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and letters of
appointment, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Company'’s business were entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2021, the Company repurchased a total of 6,096,000
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at the aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$1.7 million (before expenses).
All the repurchased shares were cancelled during FY2021.

Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:

EEEH
BREFORS AN REE RS - FAEMETRIFE

EABEARR B 2R B EBHEIE RITHE
aHy-

BE HEIBERAQATZ LELHmES

RZZEZ—FHREE ARAEBRAEREG X
6,096,000 AR AIf%1D - 42X (E 411,700,000/ 7T
(BRI - FTEBRBRNENR - - —FHHRF

BRFEWT

Purchase price per share Aggregate

Number of shares BRBRMHBEE Consideration

Month A% repurchased Highest Lowest (before expenses)
BRE

BEROEA Be B®I& (4NERBASZ AT )

(HK$) (HKS$) (HKS$)

(E7T) (&) (&)

March 2020 ZEZTF=H 4,432,000 0.300 0.260 1,253,400.00
April 2020 —E-TFNA 1,200,000 0.305 0.280 345,520.00
May 2020 —E-TFHA 464,000 0.300 0.295 137,440.00
Total 4t 6,096,000 1,736,360.00

The above share repurchases were made with a view to stabilise
the price per share of the Company, as the management of the
Company considered that the market price of the share might not
be able to truly reflect the value of the Company’s shares and the
Company'’s prospects.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities during FY2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the revenue from rendering of
services attributable to the major customers of the Group during
the financial year is as follows:

FEEFR
WA BER - ARHALE TS5 EEREREH
Bl AR

2021

B -5

The largest customer BRAEF 3.8%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 15.9%

At no time during the year ended 28 February 2021 had the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (to
the best of the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in these
major customers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 26 May 2021,
the Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public float
under the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan
Chart Man, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan
Nga Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin entered into a deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of
the Company on 21 February 2013 pursuant to which they have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its
subsidiaries) that it or he or she would not, and would procure
that its or his or her associates (other than any member of our
Group) would not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or be
interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the current businesses of the Group during the restricted period.

Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr.
Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion are the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust whose
trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire issued share
capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
parties to the Deed of Non-competition on compliance with each
of their respective undertaking thereunder.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the parties to
the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that the Deed of
Non-competition is fully complied with and duly enforced during
the year ended 28 February 2021 and up to the date of this
report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions of the Group constituted continuing
connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Group for the year ended 28 February
2021:

Tenancy agreements

(i)  On 22 June 2020, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Hing Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Hing Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited
("Kwan Chart Holding”), which is owned as to 90% and
10% by Mr. Chan Chart Man (an executive Director) and
his spouse Ms. Mui Hang Sin (a substantial shareholder
of the Company), respectively. Pursuant to the Hing Wah
Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Holding shall lease a
premises to Hing Wah HK for a term of one year from 8
June 2020 to 7 June 2021 at a monthly rent of HK$80,000
and pay a monthly management fee of HK$3,300. During
the contract period, the management fee may be increased
by a maximum of 30% (up to HK$4,290) if and only if the
respective management fee payable by Kwan Chart Holding
increases.

(i) On 22 June 2020, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Wai Wah
HK"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Wai Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Mr. Chan Chart Man, an executive
Director. Pursuant to the Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement, Mr.
Chan Chart Man shall lease a premises to Wai Wah HK for
a term of one year from 8 June 2020 to 7 June 2021 at a
monthly rent of HK$90,000.
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(iii)  On 22 June 2020, for the purpose of operating our head
office, Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Oi Wah HK")
entered into a tenancy agreement (“Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited
("Kwan Chart Estate”), which is owned as to 95% and
5% by Mr. Chan Chart Man (an executive Director) and his
spouse Ms. Mui Hang Sin (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), respectively. Pursuant to the Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement, Kwan Chart Estate shall lease a premises to Oi
Wah HK for a term of one years from 31 May 2020 to 30
May 2021 at a monthly rent of HK$55,000.

Annual review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

Although all the Continuing Connected Transactions are fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules,
these transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors who have confirmed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related party transactions
that did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules made during the year were disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are
reviewed annually. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association
provide that Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the
Company’s assets against claims from third parties in respect of
certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance

cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10
to 19 under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, which forms part of this report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement
of the relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, the Directors
are not aware of any non-compliance in any material respect with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group’s business and operations for the year ended 28
February 2021.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules are set out in the corporate governance report of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the Group’s
existing business activities on the environment and complying with
the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions as set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 28 February
2021 are set out in the environmental, social and governance
report which is to be issued within five months after the end of
the year ended 28 February 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the year ended 28 February 2021 and
up to the date of this report, there was no other significant or
important event that affects the business of the Group.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2021 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited and a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
26 May 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its business and the Shareholders. The Company
has adopted the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasise a quality board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

Throughout FY2021 and up to the date of this annual report,
our Company applied the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code and complied with the Code Provisions, save for the
deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.5.2(a) and A.6.7 which is
explained below.

Code Provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
an executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr. Chan
Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of our Group
and has been primarily involved in the formulation of business
strategies and determination of the overall direction of our Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for our Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of our Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of our Group's business plans, our Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the best
interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

Code Provision A.5.2(a) requires members of the nomination
committee of the Company to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. At the meeting of the nomination committee
of the Company held on 30 July 2020, an independent non-
executive Director was absent due to an urgent family matter.

Code Provision A.6.7 requires independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors to attend general meetings
to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. At the annual general meeting held on 30 July
2020, an independent non-executive Director was absent due to
an urgent family matter.
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In addition, to demonstrate the Company’s continued commitment
to high standards of corporate governance, the Board adopted a
board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply with a new
Code Provisions on board diversity. With the adoption of our
board diversity policy, the Company has expanded the duty scope
of the Nomination Committee to include the monitoring of the
implementation of the policy.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to
time.

DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management of the Company
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approving and monitoring all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to
the senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operation and production plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems.
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For the year ended 28 February 2021, the Board held six formal
meetings. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 28 February 2021 is as follows:

BE-_ZT-—F-_A-+ N \HIFE 522877
NAFREH - BE-_SE-_—F-_A-+N\BItE
EEAfESEHEESFeeZ BRI

Board Meeting  Annual General Meeting

Name of Director EEHR EEEeS BRREERE
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) BRES S (1)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFITHAZE) 6/6 11

Mr. Chan Chart Man (Note 1) BRE ST (HiatT) 4/6 1/1
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) BRICHZZ L (HiatT) 6/6 1/1
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) BREF 2L (Hiat1) 4/6 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (Note 1) BRERERSEAE (HiatT) 4/6 11
Mr. Ng Siu Hong h#aREEE 4/6 171
Independent non-executive Directors: BUHNTEE:
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert 2B L 4/6 11
Dr. Yip Ngai 2RET 4/6 1/1
Mr. Lam On Tai MEZREE 3/6 0/1
Note: Wizt -

1. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong
and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are siblings. Mr. Chan Chart Man
is their father.

For the year ended 28 February 2021, apart from the meetings
of the Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been
obtained by written resolutions on a number of matters.

For the year ended 28 February 2021, one general meeting of the
Company was held.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director, currently holds
both the positions of chairman and chief executive officer. Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward has been the key leadership figure of the
Group, who has been primarily involved in formulation of business

1. BREEgE - RERRZLT REFTLLERREIREE
LB - R A R EZ X -

BE T —F_A-tN\HULEFE BKEESSH
Sy ERENMEEBEMRARRE MEZHEE-

BE_Z_—F_A-1+N\ALFE ARRCET
NSNS

EERTHAR
STRAMEXEA2 MERETRFERTRARZ AEEE
B BTEHEE— ALHREI-

HITESRRR A ERBRIETE RITRAEBA -
REEAE—ERASEZEIRZEEA T2REY
AIAKEZEBRRBEEEARE 2 BRI - BN
REREBEAMBTERRAEEGREERRE K

Annual Report 2021 — T = —F &£ 37



Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

strategies and determination of the overall direction of the Group.
He has also been chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of the Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of the Group’s business plans, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The current composition of
the Board is as follows:

N—ERARBZEREEREA - EEIEBHEASE
ExBHEZEEL EF (BEBUIFNTESE)
R BREEAER/ZMERL 2 REAE MR
ZHHARRRBREBEN U NARE 2 EER

A
><
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EsgcAM

EXeliRmNRESEN BRUARTEE MW
RIFRTEER =B ILFATEFT -EFHRL
AR :

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZZEEHE

Executive Directors:

HITEF -

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
PREASR ST (R FITEAAEL)

Mr. Chan Chart Man
BREE ST A4

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
PREEH 22+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong
BRIEF L+

Non-executive Directors:
FERITESE -

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BREAER A&

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
RARTE

Independent non-executive Directors:
HUIFHITEE

Mr. Lam On Tai

M RAELE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
2IHIEL

Dr. Yip Ngai
Byt

38 Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B EEEERERE QT

Member of Remuneration Committee
HNEZEENE
Member of Nomination Committee

RAZEEKE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee
FNEESEXR

Member of Audit Committee
BEZEZBEEKE

Member of Nomination Committee
RAREEEKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
RELEEER

Member of Audit Committee
EZEZBEEKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
HHNEZEENE

Chairman of Audit Committee
EZLEEER
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have
such number of independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (currently known as Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became
an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently
known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 56 to 59
of this annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 56 to 59 of
this annual report, the Board members do not have any family,
financial or business relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, and each of the non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and is subject to
the re-appointment of each of the Directors by the Company at
an annual general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any
Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
according to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operation
of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Directors will also be updated from time to
time on the business development and operation plans of the
Company.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Company will
arrange for, and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate
in continuous professional development organised in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep
them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, a non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Each of our non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and
shall continue thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the
terms of the letters of appointment.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix 10
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers) (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to
the dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, each Director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 28 February 2021
and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
With the adoption of the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to comply with the Code Provisions, the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 23
May 2014. According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board
should be composed of directors with diversed skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience. The Board will review such measurable objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and assess the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee considered the Board composition was in compliance
with the Board Diversity Policy.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and senior management. The existing
members of the Nomination Committee include Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, both are independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director.
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the reporting
year. During the meeting, the Nomination Committee proposed to
the Board to re-elect the retiring Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chart
Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and the structure, size and diversity of the Board. Please
refer to the table below for the attendance record of the meetings
of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 28 February
2021:
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Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
PG L (FEEZESTE)

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
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Mr. Lam On Tai
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which specifies the procedures, process and criteria of
the nomination of Directors.

Selection criteria for nomination and appointment of
Directors

When making any recommendations in relation to the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider, but without limitation, the
following factors when evaluating the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

° competence, experience, skills, expertise, education and
professional qualifications, background and other personal
attributes of the candidate that can best complement and
expand the skill set and expertise of the Board as a whole;

o reputation for integrity;

. availability of the candidate, as to whether the candidate
can devote sufficient time and effort to properly discharge
his duties as a Director; and

. other factors as the Nomination Committee or the Board
may deem relevant.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive director, he or she must comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. Such
candidate shall be independent in judgment and character, and
shall be able to act in the best interests of the Shareholders.

Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy sets out the procedure and process in
relation to the nomination of Directors as follows:

. members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall
identify, nominate and invite suitable candidates;

o the Nomination Committee shall determine the suitable
candidate for appointment in accordance with the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy;

o in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
the Nomination Committee shall review and evaluate the
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candidate’s overall performance and contributions, and
make recommendations to the Board and/or Shareholders
for consideration in respect of his/her re-election in general
meetings; and

o for any individual that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director in the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate with reference to the criteria
stipulated above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with good
corporate governance practice and regulatory requirements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, determine on behalf
of the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for the Directors and senior management, assess
performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The existing members of the
Remuneration Committee include Mr. Lam On Tai and Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki Albert, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, an executive Director. Mr. Lam On Tai is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
reporting year. During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the Directors’ salaries and other allowances and the
remuneration of the senior management and assessment system.
Please refer to the table below for the attendance record of the
meeting of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
28 February 2021:

FHNZEENBEFEANBRIT - REZ -FTHEE
ERELENESTHFMREMERARSREEES
MEEZHE - TRENEENEBE_F—_—F_A
“HN\BLEEEHEFMEZES SR 20

Directors

E=x

Attendance/
Number of Meeting held

HEBITEERE

Mr. Lam On Tai (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

ML ZEE (FNZEEEE/E)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward

PR ZR SE 4
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RIKEEL

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (as
described under the section “Directors and Senior Management”)
by band for the year ended 28 February 2021 is set out as
follows:

171
171

11
EREEEXREREES D 2HH
RIETFRIBEXER 1SR BRTEENE (Rm [E

EREEERE] A BE—FT—_—F_A
“HNBLEFERBESD 2 HMEINWT :

Number of

individuals
Remuneration band & E A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 702 1,500,0005& 7T 2
Audit Committee EREEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
the internal control systems of the Group. The existing members
of the Audit Committee comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki
Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Dr. Yip Ngai is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the reporting
year. During these meetings, the Audit Committee confirmed
the appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and fixed its
remuneration, and reviewed the procedures of internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee was of the view that the
procedures of internal control of the Group were effective. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the interim and annual results of
the Group for the financial year and the auditors’ report prepared
by the external auditors in relation to accounting matters and any
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material findings during the audit. The Audit Committee was of Z—AZ+NBIEFEHEEZEZE TSR 20k
the opinion that such financial statements and report complied
with the applicable accounting policy standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosures have been made. Please refer to
the table below for the attendance record of the meetings of the
Audit Committee during the year ended 28 February 2021:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
= HiEBITERRE
Dr. Yip Ngai (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
EREBL (FRZESTE) 2/2
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RKEE L 2/2
Mr. Lam On Tai
ML ZEE 212

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the
development and review of the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and monitoring the compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, and reviewing the corporate governance
compliance with the Code Provisions and disclosure in the annual
report.

In order to comply with the requirements of Code Provision A.6.5,
all Directors participated in training in relation to continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contributions to the Board remains
informed. The Board has also reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and this corporate governance report.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the #HEZZE-—F-_A-+\HLEFE JFSEEMEX
year ended 28 February 2021 is summarised below: ZERIEEIE e T -

Attending or participating in seminars/conferences/

corporate events or reading regulatory updates/

Names of Directors journals relating to director’s duties
HESSMHANE S LEITHR

EEpns MEFEESRECENEEEAR B

Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward

FREAZ L& v
Mr. Chan Chart Man

BRI e v
Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PR S 2 & v
Ms. Chan Mei Fong

BREF L+ v

Non-executive Directors

HHTEE

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion

BRER IR 55 4 v
Mr. Ng Siu Hong

h#ARE A v

Independent non-executive Directors

BIHFHTEF

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

R E L v
Dr. Yip Ngai

ERE+ v
Mr. Lam On Tai

ML HTEE /
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner
in accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rules 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
28 February 2021. Currently, the Company’'s external auditors are
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (the “Auditors”).

For the year ended 28 February 2021, the fees paid or payable by
the Company to the Auditors amounted to approximately HK$0.8
million, which was all for audit services.

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 60 to 66 of this
annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound enterprise risk management and internal control
system and through the Audit Committee and, if necessary, an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal control
services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance and strategic risk control functions. The
Board understands that such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues identified to the Board.
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During the year under review, the Company also appointed
an independent professional consultancy firm, BT Corporate
Governance Limited ("BTCGL") to

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comments of the Audit
Committee, the Board considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group reviewed its enterprise risk management framework
in FY2021. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversights risk management and internal audit functions.
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Principal Risks

In the reporting year, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks.

TEERHRE
TEAR
REEEE AEEARRIATEEZAR HH5EA
ERER  LERR HBERRAREAR -

Risk Areas Principal Risks

R # EERMRE

Compliance Risks No significant risk identified
SRER RS N

Operational Risks

LERR

Financial Risks

Bt

No significant risk identified
RS N

Strategic Risk
R B EREEWETS TTRR

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed
by operations management, coupled with risk management
monitoring carried out by the finance team and independent
internal audit outsourced to and conducted by BTCGL. The Group
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks
of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of
new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least
annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk related parties have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to those
risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-up
action in an efficient manner.

Business interruption caused by COVID-2019
120197 A 7 5 /i T B 2R SE 75 7

Risk of downturn of the real estate market in Hong Kong
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The Group’s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management framework will be evaluated at least
annually, and periodic management meeting is held to update the
progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management is committed
to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily business
operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the SFO. The internal control mechanism includes information
flow and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements,
disclosure procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating
and financial performance and sets appropriate policies for risk
management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The
Board delegates the implementation of strategies and day-to-day
operation of the Group to the management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the
Board and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the
Board, possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is
capable of performing the functions of the company secretary. The
Company will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take not less than
15 hours of appropriate professional training in each financial year
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 28 February 2021, Mr. Cheng had taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, in circumstances that the
Group is profitable and without affecting the normal operations
and business of the Group, the Company may consider declaring
and paying dividends to its shareholders.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and
determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the financial
position of the Group; (ii) the capital and debt level of the Group;
(iii) the general market conditions; (iv) any cash requirements for
any future development plans of the Group; (v) any restrictions on
dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group’s lenders; and (vi)
any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The payment of the dividends by the Company will also be subject
to any restrictions imposed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands as well as the articles of association of the Company.

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will from time to time
review the dividend policy and may exercise at its absolute and
sole discretion to update, amend, and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time as the Board deems fit and necessary. There is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any specific reporting period.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed
to waive any dividends was made by the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the Shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Board also recognises that
effective communication with the Company’s investors is critical
in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency to ensure the Shareholders and the investors
of the Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate communications on the
website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the
Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Shareholders’ Rights

1.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment
of dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited:

Address: 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point
Hong Kong
Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com
Tel: (852) 21531688
Fax: (852) 30205058

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence address,
email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)

Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk

Tel: (852) 28332002

Fax: (852) 28919831
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Shareholders’ Meetings

()

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director
as a Director:

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association,
a Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting should lodge (i) notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director; and (ii) notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected, at either (a) the
head office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office
of the Company in Hong Kong at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The period
for lodgment of the notices mentioned above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may
lodge a written request, duly signed, at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong marked for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made
by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion
decide whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the
notice of meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting of the Company.

(2) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of an ordinary
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

Constitutional Documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on 19
February 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company were adopted with effect
from the Listing Date. During the year ended 29 February 2020,
there was no significant change in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company.

The Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREXZ), aged 49, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of all the subsidiaries within the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for our Group’s overall management,
strategic planning and business development. He has over 20
years of experience in business management and pawn loan
business. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman of The Hong Kong
and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association Limited (& hiR¥rg e
BBRA7F]) and honorary chairman of Macau General Chamber
of Pawnbrokers (CRFIEFHZEMEE). Mr. Chan has been the
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong General Chamber of Property
Finance Limited since March 2014. Mr. Chan obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City
University, London, United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the
son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of Ms. Chan Mei
Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of
whom are our Directors.

Mr. Chan Chart Man (BR%X), aged 90, is our founder and
executive Director. He is also a director of each of Oi Wah Holding
Limited ("Oi Wah Holding"”), Oi Wah HK, Wai Wah HK and Hing
Wah HK. Mr. Chan is responsible for advising on overall strategic
planning and business development of our Group. Mr. Chan
established the business of our Group in 1975 and has played
a significant role in the growth of our business. He has over 45
years of experience in finance and pawn loan business. Mr. Chan
is the father of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are
our Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (FR3£35), aged 51, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms Chan is also a director of Oi
Wah HK, Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah Enterprises Limited ("Oi
Wah Enterprises”), Oi Wah Property Credit Limited (“Oi Wah
Property”), Dream City Credit Limited ("Dream City Credit”),
Oi Wah Credit Limited (“Oi Wah Credit”), Oi Wah Mortgage
Limited (“Oi Wah Mortgage"”) and Oi Wah Pawnshop Limited (“Oi
Wah Pawnshop”). Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2007 and is
responsible for the overall operations of our Group’s business. Ms.
Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Town and Country
Planning from the University of the West of England, Bristol,
United Kingdom in September 1996. Ms. Chan also obtained a
diploma in Gemmology and Gem Diamond diploma from The
Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory of Great
Britain in January 2006 and January 2007, respectively. Ms. Chan
is a fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great Britain. Ms.
Chan is the daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow
Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.
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Ms. Chan Ying Yu (BRZHI), aged 55, is our executive Director.
She is also a director of Oi Wah HK, Oi Wah Holding, Oi Wah
Enterprises, Oi Wah Property, Oi Wah Credit, Dream City Credit,
Oi Wah Mortgage and Oi Wah Pawnshop and the authorised
representative of the Company. Ms. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for overseeing our administration and
human resources matters. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Management from the
Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July 1995 and was
elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering International
Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan is the
daughter of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the sister of Mr. Chan Kai
Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion,
all of whom are our Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (FRE(ZR), aged 65, was appointed
as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan is
a lawyer with 35 years of experience in general practice. He has
passed solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong Kong and was
admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in March
1984 and has been a partner in Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan
since 2001. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Pure
Mathematics from The University of Calgary, Canada in June 1978.
Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Chart Man and the brother of
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Ms. Chan Ying
Yu, all of whom are our Directors.

Mr. Ng Siu Hong ({R#BEE), aged 40, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 1 August 2019. Mr. Ng has over 14 years
of experience in financial investment and business management.
He currently serves as a responsible officer and managing director
of Elstone Securities Limited, a licensed corporation which is
entitled to conduct type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO, as well
as a responsible officer of Elstone Asset Management Limited,
a licensed corporation which is entitled to conduct type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. Prior to joining
Elstone Securities Limited, Mr. Ng acted as an account manager
at UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited from October 2007 to May
2008, served as a vice president at Phillip Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited from June 2008 to April 2013, and acted as a responsible
officer and managing director of Kingkey Securities Group Limited
(previously known as Great Roc Capital Securities Limited) from
May 2013 to April 2021. He was awarded a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics and Finance from City University of Hong Kong in
2002 and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam On Tai (%% %), aged 49, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He has more
than 23 years of experience in banking and securities industry, in
which over 20 years of experience was accumulated in advising
on corporate finance relating to various listing and restructuring
transactions. Mr. Lam currently serves as the managing director of
Red Solar Capital Limited (412 & ABPRAF]). Mr Lam received
his diploma in general business management from the Lingnan
College (38F&4F%) (now known as the Lingnan University (587
A£) in Hong Kong in November 1994, and his master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Sheffield in
the United Kingdom in December 1996. He also obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in laws from the University of Wolverhampton
in the United Kingdom in July 1998 through a distance learning
course. Mr. Lam served as a non-executive director of Jiyi
Household International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 1495) from June 2015 to November 2018.

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (¥k#), aged 72, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013.
Dr. Leung was an assistant vice president in Citicorp International
Limited from 1987 to 1992. Dr. Leung was admitted as an
associate of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
(now known as Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in
February 1987 and became an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (now known as HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr.
Leung obtained a Doctorate degree of Philosophy in Economics
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in September
2007, a Master degree of Business Administration from Brunel
University, United Kingdom in December 1985 and a Diploma in
Management Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London,
United Kingdom in October 1983.

Dr. Yip Ngai (¥%), aged 47, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a
jewellery appraiser and valuation expert and has over 26 years of
experience in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow
of the HKICPA in May 2012. He has also been appointed as a
specialist by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
& Vocational Qualifications since July 2011 and as a technical
advisor (watch and jewellery) by the Employees Retraining Board
since September 2013. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate degree of
business administration from the EU Business School in May 2011,
a Master degree of Business Administration from the Federation
University Australia in December 2008 and a Bachelor of Business
(Accounting) degree from the Monash University, Australia in
November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a diploma in Gemmology from
The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory of
Great Britain in October 1994.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (¥5#E#), aged 38, is our chief financial
officer and company secretary. He joined our Group in June 2012
and is responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Cheng worked at KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last position
was assistant manager. Mr. Cheng was registered as a certified
public accountant and a certified public accountant (practising) of
the HKICPA in January 2010 and September 2012, respectively.
Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2006.

Mr. Ng Kai Man ({fEX), aged 60, is our marketing director
and is responsible for managing and operating our property
mortgage department. Mr. Ng joined our Group in 2013. His main
duties are strengthening customer relationships by scheduling
regular personal and company visits in Hong Kong in order to
explore new business opportunities with potential customers. Prior
to joining our Group, he had been working in Wing Lung Bank
since 1988 and was promoted to senior financial manager in
2010. Mr. Ng obtained a Diploma in marketing from Hong Kong
Productivity Council and Hong Kong Institute of Marketing in
1999 and a professional Diploma in marketing management from
Hong Kong Management Association in 1996 respectively. In 1999
he was elected full member of Hong Kong Institute of Marketing
and awarded as Professional Marketer (ProM) in 2001. He also
obtained an advanced professional Diploma in financial planning
from The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and
Continuing Education in 2006. In 2005, he has been admitted
as a Certified Professional Marketer (Asia) by Asia Marketing
Federation, which is @ member of World Marketing Federation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (Z#8#) is our company secretary.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” in this section.
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S
{‘2_‘ & ﬁa SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited &7k HAI (75 )
a’. 43]F, Lee Garden One 15 R
33 Hysan Avenue S EE

Sh[new[ng, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
TO THE MEMBERS OF Ol WAH PAWNSHOP CREDIT HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 67 to 156, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 28 February 2021, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flow for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 28 February 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment of loan receivables

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 86 to 91.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 28 February 2021, the Group’s loan receivables
amounted to approximately HK$948.1 million, net of
accumulated expected credit loss (“ECL"”) allowances of
approximately HK$5.1 million.

The determination of loss allowances using the ECL model
is subject to a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates of
probability of default, loss given default, exposures at
default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking
information and other adjustment factors including value
of collaterals. Management judgement is involved in the
selection of those parameters and the application of the
assumptions.

We identified the impairment of loan receivables as a key
audit matter because of the complexity of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgement involved in
determining impairment allowances and because of its
significance to the financial results and the total assets of
the Group.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of loan
receivables included the following:

o understanding the ECL model used by the Group
and assess its internal control effectiveness;

o evaluating the reasonableness of critical assumptions
and methods applied in the ECL model,

o recalculating the amount of ECL allowance using
the ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions;

o critically assessing the forecast cash flows for credit-
impaired loan receivables by understanding and
challenging the viability of the Group’s recovery
plans and evaluating the timing and means of
realisation of collateral; and

o evaluating the presentation and disclosures on the

impairment of loan receivables in the consolidated
financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
26 May 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEBERAMEZEBAR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

Notes 2021 2020
B =E —E—F TECTF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue Iy &5 5 182,768 223,959
Other income EH A A 7 7,875 3,367
Operating income WA 190,643 227,326
Other operating expenses HA A &R 8(c) (55,596) (58,666)
Charge for impairment losses on loan Mk ENE 2R EEE
receivables 5 (2,042) (2,011)
Profit from operations R SR 133,005 166,649
Finance costs & R AN 8(a) (20,927) (38,367)
Profit before taxation BB AR 8 112,078 128,282
Income tax PS5t 9 (18,934) (20,899)
Profit and total comprehensive B% 3R PB4 B R R R
income for the year attributable to ZHIWALE
shareholders 93,144 107,383
Earnings per share (in HK cents) - FREFR (B) —
basic and diluted BEARR#E 4.8 5.5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

as at 28 February 2021 R=ZZT=—F A =+/\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFI7R )

Notes 2021 2020
Bt aE —E-—F T FF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment B K %A 13 1,220 1,671
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 12,603 23,436
Loan receivables FEUE R 15 47,040 114,482
Other receivables o fth pE W IR 17 2,167 2,740
Deferred tax assets IRETIRE = 16 963 745
,,,,,,,,,, 63,993 143,074
Current assets REEE
Repossessed assets &G O & E 6,228 9,292
Loan receivables FEWE R 15 901,022 1,184,153
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H th fE W IE 17 2,945 2,802
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRSHFEY 18 245,304 89,026
o 1155499 1,285,273
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E At FRIE 20 6,162 6,704
Bank loans and overdrafts RITERNEX 19 14,863 103,752
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 9,752 10,661
Other loans HA & 21 23,312 124,112
Loans from the immediate holding HEEBR AR ZER
company 22 47,500 104,000
Debt securities issued BRITERES 23 74,967 =
Tax payable e TRIE 2,310 7,433
178,866 356,662
Net current assets REBEETHE 976,633 928611
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRABAE 1,040,626 1,071,685
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE B ER

as at 28 February 2021 R=T=—F=A=+/\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA THI7R )

Notes 2021 2020
B sE —E-—F ZETF
$'000 $'000
ST Sl
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Debt securities issued BETEEES 23 87,843 162,684
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 3,930 13,682
,,,,,,,,,, 91.773 176,366
NET ASSETS EEFHE 948,853 895,319

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRHE 24
Capital [N 19,324 19,385
Reserves e 929,529 875,934
TOTAL EQUITY REREE 948,853 895,319
The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 156 were 5672156 B ZirA M BRREHEST SR T = —

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
May 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
PREAER ST
Director

EF

FHA - TNBHUERFETIE:

Ms. Chan Ying Yu
BR&Em i+
Director

EF

Annual Report 2021 — B = —F 558 69



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERBEHR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

Capital
Share Share Capital redemption Other  Retained
Notes capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
EARE
(i RA&  BROEE  EARE fifF  HtRE  REER g
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T r T r T T r
At 1 March 2019 R-E-hE=5-R 19,385 90,151 44,963 1,999 12,001 654,330 822,829
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREFIRZEMALE
for the year - - - - - 107,383 107,383
Interim dividends declared and paid RENERRER 2P H
during the year ) 24(b) - (20742 - - - - (20,74
Final dividends approved in respect of 5 HAEEHETHER
the previous year and paid during the TR Z REIRE
year 24(b) - (14,151) - - - - (14,151)
At 29 February 2020 and 1 March R=2ZF%=f
2020 ZHhER=R-%F
=h-H 19,385 55,258 44,963 1,999 12,001 761,713 895,319
Profit and total comprehensive income  FREFIRZERALE
for the year - - - - - 93,144 93,144
Purchase of own shares FEEEEG) 24(c)i) (61) (1,736) - 61 - - (1,736)
Final dividends approved in respect of 5 FAEEHETRER
the previous year and paid during the TR ZKERE
year 24(b) - (16,812) - - - - (16,812)
Interim dividends declared and paid RERERRIER 2P H
during the year RE 24(b) - (15,652) - - - - (15,652)
Special dividends approved in respect of 3t HEEEHETRERN
the previous year and paid during the TR ZERIRE
year 24(b) - (5,410) - - - - (5,410
At 28 February 2021 W=B=-%Z§
Z1N\H 19,324 15,648 44,963 2,060 12,001 854,857 948,853
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERTRER

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

Notes 2021 2020
B =E —E—F TECTF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation B A58 B 4 ) 112,078 128,282
Adjustments for: BT SIBEL A -
Depreciation of plant and equipment BE REE 2 ITE 501 486
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEECITE 10,833 11,511
Bank interest income HRITH BN (5) (5)
COVID-19-related rent concession 201978 A E S HAEE <
ik (694) =
Government subsidy B #e8 Bh (2,102) =
Finance costs BE A A 20,927 38,367
Charge for impairment losses on loan MNREREZ
receivables BEEE 2,042 2,011
Net (gain) loss on loan receivables at AT EFABZE
fair value through profit or loss ([RAFETAE
("FVPL") w®l) BB ERZ
(M) BiE%HE 9) 26
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZ WS - (100)
Operating cash flows before changes EEESBHA2KERSE
in working capital 2 143,571 180,578
Decrease (increase) in repossessed assets &Y BIE ER A (3En) 3,064 (2,841)
Decrease in loan receivables FEUW B SRR 348,540 85,533
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 K H A e W SRR
receivables (3&h0) 430 (516)
Increase in accruals and other payables FEET B A R EALFELS
IR N 331 535
Cash generated from operations XBREERS 495,936 263,289
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEEEFIEH (24,275) (19,942)
Net cash generated from operating REXBABREER
activities 471,661 243,347
Investing activities REXK
Payment for the purchase of plant and BEME & &2 KA
equipment (50) (266)
Bank interest received B UEER T FI B 5 5
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HERB AR 2SR - 100
Net cash used in investing activities REXKMARSFE (45) (161)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFI7R )

Notes 2021 2020
ik —E=— —T-THF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Financing activities RE R
Repayments of other loans BEEMER (113,800) (299,120)
Repayments of bank loans EBREITER (160,166) (67,507)
Repayments of loans from the immediate @ EHBIER A ER
holding company (56,500) (40,000)
Finance costs paid BB KA (20,532) (37,229)
Dividends paid BERRE 24(b) (37.874) (34,893)
Repayments of principal on lease liabilities (EEHEABrAE (9,967) (10,597)
Payment for purchase of own shares HBE B 5D 278 24(a) (1,736) =
Repayments of interest on lease liabilities — EEHEBEZFIE (1,142) (1,541)
Proceeds from other loans HAuE R 2 TSR 13,000 158,000
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERZ S 5KIE 104,575 59,278
Government subsidy received BB T8 AL 2,102 =
Proceeds from loans from the immediate HEBEZERARERZ
holding company FriS 508 - 50,000
Net cash used in financing activities MEXBEMARSEEHE (282,040) (223,609)
Net increase in cash and cash REeRBSESEWEMNFE
equivalents 189,576 19,577
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHOzHRERELEEY
beginning of year 55,728 36,151
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZEASRESEEY
of year 245,304 55,728
Analysis of components of cash and REeERREEEYERBD
cash equivalents: 2o
Bank balances and cash IRITESBEIRS 245,304 89,026
Bank overdrafts SRITHE X 19 - (33,298)
245,304 55,728
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
secured financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn
loans and mortgage loans. Details of the principal activities
of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 31.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Kwan Lik Holding Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), and TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. as trustee of a reserved power discretionary trust for the
benefit of Mr. Chan Chart Man, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward,
Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu,
Ms. Mui Hang Sin and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, which
is incorporated in the Cayman Islands, respectively. These
entities do not produce financial statements available for
public use.

The Company's registered office is located at Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and its head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong is located at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand ($'000) except when otherwise indicated.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

—RE#

BERECEERERAR ([XA7])ENS
BBEMAYL YREEMAXSHARAT
(TH3EFR)) AR L7

ARRREMBAR (A THRHEAEE])E
ERBENEFAEARE (BERAZTERRR
BEMER) X5 - AR B AR 2 T BERK
BN

ARRER ([EB)RR F5EZEBEA
AIRBEERTDAANREBEZES ([&
BEZBE]|)FMAKZKwan Lik Holding
Limited 2 iA f 2 8 & 51 AL 2 TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. (REREXEE  RERLE RERK
T BREFRLT  BRERZLT  BEIILT KRR
B EEZFRMIESRBEMNBBERETEZR
FEA)  HEEBUEFEUBARERN 2 MBR
%

AAal 2 sF =R AL Clifton House, 75 Fort
Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1108, Cayman lIslands ' MEEBEM EEE M E
DR N BB EF T EFECTHRERKNE
2302-2303%F °

mEMBRRABT (BRI 25 ENAAR
RRIZEEEH - BRAAEAEIN FAEBEY
HWBEREOTME(TT) °

D\
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2

74

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") which are effective for the Group's financial
year beginning 1 March 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard
("HKAS"”) 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS
39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Definition of Material

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied 2021 Amendment
to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021, which is currently effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, however, in
1 April 2021, the HKICPA extended the effective date for
annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRSs and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior periods
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B ¥ EHERERE QT

FERFIEEMBREER ([FE
PR EER ) REMBFT

RAFEE AEEEERXEARBE LGNS
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EEA ([EBMBH/ERED]) 2BMERE
SIZERT R NN BBM B HRE LD 2 &5 :
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TR EA([BREHE EAZER
Al F1REBEHER
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’'D)

Early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-
19-related Rent Concessions

The amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

A lease applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 as if the changes were not lease modifications.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments is accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments and
applies the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-
related rent concessions granted to the Group during the
year. During the current year, the COVID-19-related rent
concessions recognised in the profit or loss amounted to
approximately $694,000. There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 March 2020.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

FERFIEEMBHREEA ([FE
PR EER ) REMBET (&)

REEREREVBHRELENE16K 2B
2019BRFEHRAEE 2 BERR
FEEMBHREERE 165K ZERTIRE A THE
HIDE  EAEAEETE20198MBE SR
(120198 MRFEEH ) RFERELEZHER
HEREEETeRE - ERAREZER
ARE20IERAERRBERELEZHER
B BEEGNEENRESEBEETHERE
HEZRZFHNAERBERBHER HERZAR
BE : (VERHENFRDEZERAR_-F
ZHERNAZTASZAE AN ZRE K
(i) E 2 BAD IR S IR A B R -

RAATEETECHERESRREEZHE
ENFREBLREATEMBRELENE 1652
S REAR  MZE L IBEEEET
— K -MEFRZREAMERG AR EEER
Ho AREREEREURRMAE THREGRZE
BOUAEEAHBRLHE2EEPERBENT
o

AEBEEREBIRSFRMNEBIS] YERARAE
EENFRERZATBEAEKRAN2019E MK
SHREEHSER -NAFE - 20198RFE
FEBHEEERRNERTERAZ BN ABE
694,000 L e EHN T T F = A —H ZH#)
RIS o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT’'D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to Conceptual Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2!

9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current and the related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause*
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates*
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies*
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendment to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
cycle®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

The Directors anticipate that, the application of the above
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B ¥ EHERERE QT
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for loan receivables at
FVPL that are measured at fair values, at the end of each
reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

SEBGR
BAVBBRRDBERSSHMASEMOZE
U BREEMER - IIN GRETHRERE
B ES EMRAREARERIFHE
ZEAEE -

REREIA A MSERRRBE SR AL
iR R T B AIRS 2 BRI
HERW SRR AT ESE -

ELRA—RRIESRBE A RGHERE
ZRFEMERE °

AFEAEMHE2EERTEHHERBETH AR
FE(KFBAMN) MBTEREFRFIHEEE
FrUER k82 B EAT S 2 B (BFEEE) -
MAwZEREREEBRME NGNS —
HERMEETETE - A FEFEFFBER TATE
SRR EE-

TXEFNERGETEER -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and disposal of repossessed
assets in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or

a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BE#HEEEERER QA
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EARE:EE (&)
(CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (CONT'D) W ER (&)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised i & AT B ip —IB (R4 - BIT2E il e B s PR 88
over time by reference to the progress towards complete % il Z AR OEE 2 TiEERER
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of EER

the following criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes BERANE E B AR R R OB REAR &
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as BB AFTIR M2 Fas
the Group performs;

e The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset s AFEEBERBAREIEARTFREEERIZE
that the customer controls as the asset is created or Sl I8 R B3R I A B EE 5 B

enhanced; or

e The Group's performance does not create an asset s AEEREAVEAIEHASEAEENKA
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group BWEE  BASBEARGIBITHEKRE
has an enforceable right to payment for performance SETRBAS R 2 FIE

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when BRI WS B P 1S A RER fh S AR TS 12 6l #E B
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service. TR o

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in Wiz EPENEECREHNE  TRIEREKSE
a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on =FUWE &5 -

behalf of third parties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Revenue recognition (CONT’D)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income for all financial assets are recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Fee income

Fee income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provide, except where the fee is charged
to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In
these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the costs or risk are
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

Disposal of repossessed assets

Disposal gain or loss is recognised when the buyer of
the repossessed assets takes control of and accepts the
goods.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT’'D)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
Group's returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to shareholders of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to shareholders of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments

The Group initially recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

Financial assets

Financial assets represent loans and receivables which mainly
comprise pawn loans and mortgage loans. Pawn loans are
loans provided whereby personal property such as gold,
jewellery and diamonds, watches and consumer electronic
products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Mortgage loans are loans secured by real estates.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Loans and receivables held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

. amortised cost, if the loan and receivable is held within
a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI"). Interest income from the loan and receivable
is calculated using the effective interest method;

o FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the loan and receivable comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses or impairment gains or losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the loan and
receivable is derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss; or

° FVPL, if the loan and receivable does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the loan and
receivable (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment the Group considers:

o contingent events that would change the amount and
timing of cash flows;

. leverage features;
3 prepayment and extension terms;

3 terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

3 features that modify consideration of the time value of
money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

()  Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, other than originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition),the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
For originated credit-impaired financial assets, a
credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows, including
expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the
debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent
they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the ‘other operating expenses’ line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 25(d).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets

Expected credit loss (“ECL") are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

o fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

° variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

° 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

o lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to

result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BE#HEEEERER QA

EAREFER (&)

ERTER (&)

EEEERE

BHEERR ((RUGFEER]) REEBRZ
BEMEL - EEEBRRMEENREER
(ARBAVENAEE 2R EREEAKEE
B2 ReREZRIERE) CREFE -

WHBYEEA  AITENRS 2 ERAN TR
BT -

s TEEERMEE BEHREMEUFE:RN
VTR B 2 BIR M R EITEUE

o FEERMEE:EREBERME

REFTFRMEEBEERMEEZZEREAR
SEEEEERR 2 HZRAHERE -

R ERBEEEERR  AEEZ B3 BAN
WV ERARBE N EARFZEERAIEER
£ BIEAESMF - B AR RAR G EIRR TR
BB R -

RHMEE B RIZA N — A&

o  NREABHEERE: EMN®mE AR
128 A AR RERAE Z BN ST RNE
'R

o ZHIRHEEEE: RHNRETEMAEHE
EBREA R RARFRAME A
BEZENSHMEBHESE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on loan receivables (exclude pawn loans at FVPL)
that are measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate. In
respect of the mortgage loans which have been past due for
less than 1 month, the amounts mainly represent occasional
delay in repayment and are not an indication of significant
deterioration of credit quality of the mortgage loans. For the
pawn loans, at the Group’s sole discretion, a grace period
of up to six weeks may be provided to customers after the
end of the loan period during which the Group may allow
the customers to renew the pawn loan and/or redeem
the collateral. The overdue less than 6 weeks are not an
indicator of significant deterioration of credit quality of the
mortgage loans of pawn loans. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the debtors’ repayment ability as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)
Significant increase in credit risk (CONT'D)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

o failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

3 existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i)
the financial instrument has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term, and iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONT'D)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

. significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets

or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONT'D)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-trading,
or 3) designated as at FVPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Leasing

Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as leasee

For contracts entered into or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which
it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option)
and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT’'D)
Leasing (CONT’'D)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RR MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)
Leasing (CONT’'D)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,

less lease incentives received.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to
dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, provision is recognised and measured under HKAS 37
“Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,

unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Rights-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership
of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase
option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at

the commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified

impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)
Leasing (CONT’'D)
The Group as leasee

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the cost of the relevant right-of-use assets and the
related accumulated depreciation and impairment loss are
transferred to plant and equipment.

COVID-19-related Rent Concessions

For rental concessions relating to lease contracts that
occurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient not to assess whether a COVID-19-related Rent
Concession for lease contracts is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of
the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Leasing (CONT’'D)

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor. Leases
for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset. If
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the group
applies the exemption described above, the sublease shall be
classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)

Impairment losses on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (the “"CGU") to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGU, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGU.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGU. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

EXEFEE (&)
BERRBREAREEZAEFA

AEERRERREFMERE L RERERE
BEZEHE UBETASEMPRBRZFE
EEXBERE - I EEMBRRESR - Al
BEZAWEOSHE REERESE (118) 2
RE - EAA s RHERI B E 2 T B & 5 A -
AEBBFZEEMBREELEN ([REE
SBEM])Z2AIREEE B RAIEE R &
ZNEEER  RRIBEENDEEERREEE
B A0 REAHBMNGER B REEZ &
NERNREELEAM -

] W O] & 58 A5 X SRR L A B (B (E M
FEzRSE -NiHEEREER - B ARRE
METRBRAIR RN EHIRE AR
KRREBEBEEE /M ST hRRER
ERE AT AREHBNEER EHBRR -

ffhst BE (HRESELEM) 2B RE
REREE MEE (KRELEM) 2KE
BERBHEZEARESHE REEARAE R
EENRERSEABUNECEEESLIE
REEM=  AREK—ERSELEMNKRE
BE(ERIEEZERCELBUNCEEE
MO CFEENKEE) BRARSELEN
MRREETRESFEETLER - D ERERS
B BASRRERE  WRAERHE (M
) ZHREE EMREEVSZERSES
BURRBEEEZREABRLISEEEME
E-AERZEERMETSERNAT =8 2%
RmE % AELAFEEMFEERA (7]
BE)2H% HEREE (WAEE) KT - RE
PREZBEEZREERSRE DR ANEE
B RZARTELENEMEE - ME/BE
BB A B 2 RS

Annual Report 2021 —E=—%F3% 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RMEE

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFI7R )

3

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Impairment losses on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (CONT’'D)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted under
the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the laws of
Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of the collateral
assets from the customers. This possession takes place once
a loan becomes overdue, subject to a grace period granted
at the discretion of the Group in certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, which is generally below the net realisable
value of the repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the
assets, the related loan receivables are derecognised from
the consolidated statement of financial position. Repossessed
assets are carried at the lower of the amount initially
recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written
down if and when the net realisable value falls to below the
carrying amount of the asset. The excess/shortfall of the net
proceeds over the carrying amount of the repossessed assets
is recognised as a gain/loss upon the disposal of the assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)
Income tax (CONT’'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. When different
tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of
the periods in which the temporary differences are expected
to reverse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT’'D)
Income tax (CONT’'D)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either (i) the
same taxable entity; or (i) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of salaries, annual bonus, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
as defined contribution schemes. The employer’s monthly
contributions to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to profit or loss of
the Group for the year concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)
Employee benefits (CONT'D)

Long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in the

Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable future long
service payments based on the best estimate of the probable
future outflow of resources which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group at the reporting

date.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

EARSFEER (&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONT’'D)
Related parties (CONT’'D)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

3
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of businesses and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type of class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONT'D)
Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the net realisable
value of repossessed assets, value-in-use of plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets for the purpose of
impairment assessment and leasing transactions, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFI7R )

4 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make estimates and assumptions about amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and disclosures

made in the consolidated financial statements.

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that has a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of loan receivables

The Group determines the impairment of loan receivables
based on assumptions about ECL. Key parameters included
the identification of loss stages, estimation of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors including value of collaterals. At every
reporting date, the default rates are updated. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 28 February 2021, the carrying amount of loan
receivables was approximately HK$948.1 million (2020:
HK$1,299.0 million) net of accumulated impairment of
approximately HK$5.1 million (2020: HK$3.0 million). During
the year ended 28 February 2021, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$2.0 million (2020: HK$2.0 million) have

been recognised.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong including pawn loans and
mortgage loans.

Revenue represents interest income earned on pawn loans
and mortgage loans, and results on disposal of repossessed
assets. The amount of each nature of business of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

e 2z
AEBZEEXBAREENEARARE
(RIEMEERRRIBEAER) 255 -

Wastg S B R RIS M E AT R Z 7 2
WAAEHERBEEE ¥E - FR - REE
HHEERR MmN

2021 2020
=B —F —EIEREF
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Revenue from pawn loan business HE S RER 2 W
— Interest income from pawn loan receivables &?i[wﬂ—.—/fpﬁr 7 FE Lk
calculated using the effective interest EERZFEHA
method 8,171 10,213
— Interest income from pawn loan receivables —1&A 1@#)\?5@2?&“”&
at FVPL BERZMBHA 48,002 54,264
— Gain on disposal of repossessed assets —HE ‘“HQEQFZHQE& 8,024 7,266
64,197 71,743
Revenue from mortgage loan business RIBEAE T ER < e
— Interest income from mortgage loan —IREBRFEREFTE 2 EUBIR
receivables calculated using the effective BEAER 2 FEWA
interest method 118,571 152,216
182,768 223,959

Gain on disposal of repossessed assets is the revenue from
contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15
and the timing of recognition is at a point in time. Cost
of disposal of repossessed assets for the year ended 28
February 2021 amounted to approximately HK$36.5 million
(2020: HK$47.3 million).

During the year ended 28 February 2021 and 29 February
2020, the Group’s customer base is diversified and no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue.

HELKRBEE WEIER BV HRE LS
155 EEANREBE R E K e - e
ROFES AR —BES -BE_T—_—F_A8
ZHNBLEE HECKBEEZKANA
36,500,000 T (ZZF == 4F : 47,300,000/8
JL) °

BE_ T F_A-1+tNBR-_Z-_ZTF—
AZ+TNABALEFE AEEZEFPEZTL A
BEFEAKEET R ZBAANRE K 2
10% °
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )
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SEG

MENT REPORTING

The Group has one reportable segment, which is the
provision of secured financing business in Hong Kong,
including pawn loans and mortgage loans. Therefore, no

7 HB ¥ &
AREE—EAZHHH  DREBROAEFRE

(BEAE

RRIRIBEARE ) 275 - Eut - HE=2

FIERSNR] 25 7R B bR B #Y o

additional reportable segment and geographical information
have been presented.
OTHER INCOME HAtg A
2021 2020
=B —F —ECEF
$'000 $'000
T T
Rental income AU A 2,292 1,894
Government subsidy (Note a) BFEAL (Fista) 2,102 =
Credit related fee income EEMRREEZERKA 1,870 1,281
COVID-19-related rent concession (Note b) 2019w ERAEE S
=Rk (FisED) 694 =
Bank interest income RITHIEUA 5 5
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note c) HEN B ARz WEs
(HMizEc) - 100
Others Efth 912 87
7,875 3,367
Notes: (T

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group
recognised the COVID-19-related subsidies, of which
amounted to approximately HK$2,102,000 (2020: nil) related
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-
Epidemic Fund. Government grants has been recognised
as other income on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises the staff costs for which the
government grants are intended to compensate. The Group
recognised as other income for the year as the Group fulfiled
all the relevant granting criteria.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has received
rent concessions from lessors in the form of rent reduction.
The Group has early adopted Amendments to HKFRS 16
and applied the practical expedient not to assess whether
a rent concession occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 is a lease modification.

Dream City Credit Limited, previously known as Oi Wah
Finance Limited, which was an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group located in Hong Kong and owned
a Money Lender License, has been disposed during the year
ended 29 February 2020 to an independent third party at a
cash consideration of approximately HK$100,000.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BE#HEEEERER QA
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8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging (crediting):

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

8 KRBIAIZEF

BRBLADE M IR HIRR (FHA) AT BIRRZER

2021 2020
=B —F —ETHF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) ®ERA
Interest on debt securities issued BEITEISE ST B 9,907 9,932
Interest on other loans H B RF 8 4,458 17,529
Interest on loans from the immediate HEBEBRA R ZEKF
holding company ! 3,891 5,311
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEIFE 1,529 4,054
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 1,142 1,541
20,927 38,367
(b) Staff costs (b) EImA
Salaries and other benefits e hEMmEA 19,049 19,683
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) BEHH (F5E10) 10,125 9,686
Contributions to Mandatory Provident ‘ElEAEe ([AK
Fund (“MPF") 1) 2K 526 525
(Reversal of) charge for provision for (BmE) Mk R ARG S
long service payment BiE (584) 525
29,116 30,419
(c) Other operating expenses () HthR&EREX
Premises and equipment expenses MERZERXZ (T
excluding depreciation: BHE) :
— rental of premises —¥EHEE 2,343 1,683
— maintenance, repairs and others —RE  HEREM 1,054 1,171
3,397 2,854
Auditor’s remuneration BB N & 830 830
Depreciation of plant and equipment R K & T E 501 486
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 10,833 11,511
Advertising expenses BEHX 3,099 4,143
Legal and professional fees EERBEER 2,662 3,092
Net (gain) loss on loan receivables at BATEFAERZIE
FVPL WEFHz (Was) B
BFE 9) 26
Others HAtb 5,167 5,305
23,083 25,393
55,596 58,666
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFI7R )
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INCOME TAX FRig%
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
$'000 $'000
T T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEREH
Provision for the year FNEE
— Current tax —BNEAR IR 18,348 21,420
— Under (over) provision in prior years —BEFEREIR (B
R ) 804 (5)
19,152 21,415
Deferred tax (Note 16) IEERE (MizE16) (218) (516)
18,934 20,899

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2.0 million of profits of
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2.0 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For both
years, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of the
Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

During the year ended 28 February 2021, an under provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax was mainly arising from part of
the advertising expenses in previous years were subsequently
disqualified as deductible expense by Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands

and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

INCOME TAX (CONT'D) 9 BB (&)
The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit FRMSHESABEREMEEKAR 2R
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or TR @ AN SRR -
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2021 2020
:—ﬂi = ? — = E
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Profit before taxation B A5 A g A 112,078 128,282
Notional tax on profit before taxation, PR AT R A 2 B ERFIE (HRE
calculated at applicable rates RAMEE) 18,328 21,001
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBRAZ G E (348) (24)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR A BT E 218 47
Statutory tax concession (Note) EERIER R (MizE) (68) (120)
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERENT (B
1) 804 (5)
Income tax PS5 18,934 20,899
Note: Statutory tax concession represented a reduction of Hong Hiat: EEBBEBRIE =S8 T =_—FK=F

Kong Profits Tax for the year of assessment 2020/2021 and
2019/2020 by 100%, subject to a ceiling of HK$10,000 and
HK$20,000 respectively.

N ZE_EFRREE 2B BNERINR
100% ' M _EFR % Bl A10,0007% 7T }2.20,0007%

i
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

10 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

114

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

10 EEH
EEHMRIEEB A TIEFIE383(1)ERA T
(BREEEMXER) WO E20HBENT -

Year ended 28 February 2021 BE-ZE--—F-A=-+NHLFE
Salaries,
Directors’ and other Discretionary Contributions
fees benefits bonuses to MPF Total
ek
Exzhe Hh3g Al BigfEA BESHER Fo
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HITES
Chan Kai Ho Edward PR
(Chief Executive) (fTER#BE) - 1,730 5,369 18 7117
Chan Ying Yu PR 555 - 602 - 18 620
Chan Chart Man PRIE X - 490 - - 490
Chan Mei Fong BREFR - 980 - 18 998
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ng Siu Hong h#RER 180 - - - 180
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion ~ BREUEK 180 - - - 180
Independent non- BYEHITES
executive directors
Lam On Tai MEZ TR 180 - - - 180
Leung Shiu Ki 2R 180 - - - 180
Yip Ngai R 180 - - - 180
Total st 900 3,802 5,369 54 10,125
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B ¥ EHERERE QT
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D) 10 EE=HM (8F)

Year ended 29 February 2020 BE-Z_EF_A-tHhBLFE
Salaries, and  Discretionary ~ Contributions
Directors' fees other benefits bonuses to MPF Total
Hek
EEME H i@ RIS RESHT fEt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T 7 T 7 T
Executive directors HITES
Chan Kai Ho Edward FRERZR
(Chief Executive) (T80 - 1,730 5,040 18 6,788
Chan Ying Yu PR 255 - 590 - 18 608
Chan Chart Man PREE XX = 490 - - 490
Chan Mei Fong B3 - 957 - 18 975
Non-executive director  FEHTES
Ng Siu Hong (Note) hERER (F3E) 105 - - - 105
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion  BREEL 180 = = = 180
Independent non- BYEHTES
executive directors
Lam On Tai N 180 = = = 180
Leung Shiu Ki 2 180 = = = 180
Yip Ngai £ 180 = = = 180
Total st 825 3,767 5,040 54 9,686

Note: Mr. Ng Siu Hong was appointed as non-executive director on
1 August 2019.

The discretionary bonus for Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is
determined by having regard to his performance and the
Group’s performance and profitability and the prevailing
market conditions.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is also the chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during both years.

During both years, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 11 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

K MBREER-Z-NFN\A-BEZERFE
HITES-

REEREEZHBIEATIESERZRBEIAR
REE 2 EERBHEENARBITHREE

REEREEMBARA ZITHAE ([{TEHA
R MEXHEER e BEABRES
TTRABEPTIRHEIRTS 2 & -

RREFER  HEESREXFBREEMNF
A -

RMAEFEAR  AEEYEINRENTESTK
TXHENAEEAAERSHMALFE
PAYE R 5l 5 5 pnEE s i B AN SR Bl 1% 2 22 3
TERBER (S -
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2020: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2020: three)

are as follows:

1

REHMAL

hEaERFMALHEME (ZE_FF M
B)RARAES  REZFHMRHE10KE -
RT=R (T _FF : =F) ALZFMERE

T -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

$'000 $'000

Tt Tz

Salaries and other benefits e LEMEF 3,318 3,232

Contributions to MPF 54 54

3,372 3,286

The emoluments of the above three (2020: three) individuals =% (ZZE=ZF: =F)BaiMAtTz
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: LA T EE A -

2021 2020

=B —F —ECEF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AZ

Nil - HK$ 1,000,000 1,000,000 7T 1 1

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%87c£ 1,500,000
2 2
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable RA B R B T AR E AR F TR A T Sk
to shareholders of the Company is based on the following FTE
data:
Earnings 27
2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi — ? — $
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 7K/ &A% B & { 4F 79 %5 F
of the Company 93,144 107,383
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EiERZMEFEGH
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FTF
Number of Number of
shares shares
R E B izt €k B
‘000 ‘000
T T
Issued ordinary shares at 1 March R=ZA—BZEBTEER 1,938,468 1,938,468
Effect of purchase of own shares (note 24(c) BEEBHBRH ZFE
(i) (B EE24(c)ii) ) (5,626) -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F{Est ESREREF| 2 L
for the proposes of basic earnings per A& N £ 15 25
share 1,932,842 1,938,468

The basic earnings per share and the diluted earnings per
share are the same as there were no potential dilutive

ordinary shares in issue during both years.

HRMEFESECETEERESERE &
PR EAR E A B A E & R R o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

118

13 BERRE

Leasehold Furniture and
improvements fixtures Motor vehicles Total
HEYxEEE REREE RE #st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 March 2019 RZE—hF=H
—H 3,939 3,488 1,259 8,686
Additions e 189 77 - 266
Transfer from right-of-use EERETRAEEE
assets (Note) (Bf=E) - - 1,247 1,247
At 29 February 2020 and 1 RZEZFTF_H
March 2020 —t+thBEE
TECEF=
H—H 4,128 3,565 2,506 10,199
Additions AN - 50 - 50
At 28 February 2021 RZTZ—%_-A
i AN 4,128 3,615 2,506 10,249
Accumulated depreciation: EBEFHITE:
At 1 March 2019 RZZE—HF=H
—H 3,774 2,763 258 6,795
Charge for the year FRZH 65 169 252 486
Transfer from right-of-use EBRACREEE
assets (Note) (Bf=E) - - 1,247 1,247
At 29 February 2020 and 1 RZTZZTF_A
March 2020 “t+hBER
—ETF=
H—H 3,839 2,932 1,757 8,528
Charge for the year FRAZH 73 176 252 501
At 28 February 2021 RZT=Z—%=A
—+NH 3,912 3,108 2,009 9,029
Carrying values: BRMEE :
At 28 February 2021 RZEZ—F=H
—+AH 216 507 497 1,220
At 29 February 2020 RZTEZZTF_A
—+hH 289 633 749 1,671

Note: During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group
reclassified a motor vehicle with Nil carrying value from right-

of-use assets upon the expiration of finance lease.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D) 13 HERRE (&)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on LilEREHEEEREEMTFEREHNIZ
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the HEREERENT :
assets, as follows:
Leasehold Over the shorter of term of the lease HEMFEEE HEHHSF (UREE S
improvements or 5 years 4£)
Furniture and 5 years REAREE 54
fixtures
Motor vehicles 5 years B 54
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 14 FRAEREEREEAEE
LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets ERAREE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Leased properties - buildings HEMHE BT 12,603 23,436

The Group has lease arrangements for leased properties. The
lease terms are generally ranged from one to five years with
fixed lease payments.

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group did not
enter into any new lease of leased properties that should be
recognised as right-of-use asset (2020: HK$8.6 million).

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group has
subleased part of the leased properties. The Group has
classified the sublease as operating lease. During the year
ended 28 February 2021, the Group recognised rental
income from subleasing right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$2.3 million (2020: HK$1.9 million).

AEEBCHEEMRELEELS - HEH—K
NF—ERF WAXNEEHEERE -

BT F_A-t+ N \HILFE KEEW
B ERBERRABEAEEENTHEDEY
$HEE (=% 8,600,000/ 7T) °

BE-_Z-_—F-_A-+/N\BLEE X&EE
BN HEME AEBEEKIHELEAR
REFHE - HE-_ET-_—F-_A=-+ N8It
FE -AEERERAS>HEERAEEEZHS KA
492,300,000/ 7C (ZZ =4 : 1,900,000/%
JL) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

14 ERAREEREERRE ()

Lease liabilities HEERE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTE
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current E 9,752 10,661
Non-current FEMEN 3,930 13,682
13,682 24,343
Amounts payable under lease liabilities HESEETN ZENRE
2021 2020
=B —F —ECERE
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Within one year —F R 9,752 10,661
After one year but within two years —FIREMFA 2,809 9,752
After two years but within five years MERERFR 1,121 3,930
Less: Amount due for settlement within s 1218 B A 2 B EIER
12 months 18 13,682 24,343
(shown under current liabilities) (FIRmEEREET) (9,752) (10,661)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  FM21{E A 124575 2 B HiF 18 3,930 13,682

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group did not HE-_ZE—
enter into any new lease agreement in respect of renting
leased properties and recognising lease liabilities (2020:

HK$8.6 million).
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

Rent concessions

During the year, the Group received rent concessions in the
form of a discount on fixed payments during the period
of severe social distancing and travel restriction measures
introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence
of COVID-19 pandemic, which met all of the conditions
in HKFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical
expedient not to assess whether the changes constitute
lease modifications. Accordingly, during the current year,
rent concessions totaling approximately HK$694,000 have
been accounted as negative variable lease payments and
recognised in the profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the lease liabilities.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

14 ERAREEREERRE (F)

HERH

FR - RBH20197T MKk =75 F 1% M HETT B AR
IR MM TR BRI - AEEEFEE
IR ANEE TR

HERMA2019BRNEERREERTEME
EENABBMBRELENF16.46BIEHAE
et AR E D A AT REE 2 AT
SHITLBRBEEET At RAFE e
TR H£49694,000/8 T ABRSIVER ATEEE
RYEBERHER BUHEAGBIEHERS

Amounts recognised in profit or loss REREIZERE
2021 2020
—2-—-F kS 22
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets - leased EREEETE-—HEME
properties 10,833 11,428
Depreciation of right-of-use assets - motor ERAEEERE —RE
vehicle - 83
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESBEZFEMXT 1,142 1,541
Expense relating to short-term leases ERRBMEE A 2,343 1,683
Rent concession related to COVID-19 2019 MBS HIBEHE 2 e
= (694) =
Income from subleasing right-of-use assets DEEREEE KA (2,292) (1,894)

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the total cash
outflow for leases amounted to approximately HK$13.5
million (2020: HK$13.8 million).

BE_Z - —F-_A-+/N\BItFE HEZR
SR 4AFE4) /513,500,000 70 ( ZE T F
13,800,000/ 7T ) ©
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15 LOAN RECEIVABLES 15 BRER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEE
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Loan receivables at amortised cost: REBERATEZERER
— Pawn loans —HEEN 31,930 30,045
— Accrued interests of pawn loans —BEERZERTHE 699 784
Pawn loan receivables A E == =N 32,629 30,829
— Mortgage loans —RBERER 801,196 1,137,328
— Accrued interests of mortgage loans — IR E R 2 BT AILE 9,874 12,278
811,070 1,149,606
Less: Impairment allowance on mortgage B IRIBE FOR B —
loans - Stage 3 F3MEER (5,053) (3,011)
Net mortgage loan receivables FEUIZ BRI EFUF 5 806,017 1,146,595
Net loan receivables at amortised cost REE AT E 2 BN
BU5EE 838,646 1,177,424
Loan receivables at FVPL: BAFETTABREZ
FEWERR:
Pawn loans HE S 109,416 121,211
Total loan receivables EWEREEE 948,062 1,298,635
Current portion included under current assets  FIFRRENVE EIB 2 BNEREE 5 (901,022) (1,184,153)
Amounts due after one year included under  ZIRIERBEEE N —F1%&
non-current assets B HAFIA 47,040 114,482

In determining the expected credit losses for loan receivables,
the Directors have determined using a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default, discount rate, adjustments for
forward-looking information, value of collateral and other
adjustment factors.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

15 LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 15 BRER (&)
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or RREFEA - HEEKER ZEETE'T?%%%F)TFH
significant assumptions made during both years in assessing AT R ATfE 2 ER BRI EE B
the loss allowance for loan receivables.
Movement in impairment losses BB EEE
2021 2020
:g:—qi — 7 —% E'E
Expected credit loss Expected credit loss
EHEESR TREEEEE
Stage 3 Total Stage 3 Total
FE3MEE st FIMEER S
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tt Tt
At 1 March R=H—H 3,011 3,011 1,000 1,000
Impairment losses charged Bz IIBR 2 Rk
to profit or loss B8 2,042 2,042 2,011 2,011
At 28 February/29 February —A=tN
H —AH
—thH 5,053 5,053 3,011 3,011

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group has
provided approximately HK$5.1 million (2020: HK$3.0
million) expected credit loss due to the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full.

REBE_ZT-_—F_A=-1+/\BLEFE £A&£H
FIBHAE B A B R 495,100,0008 T (==
Z4F :3,000,00087T) - BA—RERARBLE
ARAEBEZHEMNEEEST
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15

124

LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)
Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis of the gross amount of loan receivables is

prepared based on contractual due date and not net of loss
allowance as follows:

15 EWER (&)

AR AT
ERAXNIHERAEEY BB RERZIE
WERERE ZREDITANT -

Pawn loans
at amortised Pawn loans Mortgage
cost at FVPL loans Total
R RAYE
AR Z FAB®Z RIGE
HEEM HEEX €7 et
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
¥ T ¥ ¥
28 February 2021 —E-—%—HA
—+N\H
Not past due I &8 Hf 32,124 107,285 503,512 642,921
Less than 1 month past due  #HA A 11E A 505 1,357 241,223 243,085
1 to less than 3 months BHTRAZELR
past due 316 A - 324 36,243 36,567
3 to less than 6 months BmE3EAELR
past due 616 A - 450 - 450
6 months to 1 year past wHGE A =15
due - - 22,754 22,754
Over 1 year past due BHF LA £ - - 7,338 7,338
32,629 109,416 811,070 953,115
29 February 2020 —ZE-ZH_H
=thH
Not past due 3 #5580 B 28,196 117,913 776,130 922,239
Less than 1 month past due  #1HA A 11E A 2,416 2,264 248,613 253,293
1 to less than 3 months BEIEAELR
past due 31E A - 523 94,704 95,227
3 to less than 6 months BE3EAELR
past due 61E A 217 511 22,821 23,549
6 months to 1 year past EHI6E A =145
due - - - -
Over 1 year past due BEFIA L - - 7,338 7,338
30,829 121,211 1,149,606 1,301,646
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 15 BRER (&)
Ageing analysis (CONT’'D) SRR DT (48)
As at 28 February 2021, of these mortgage loans which RZE——F-—A=+\RA ' ttEaf—@EA
have been past due for one month or above, except for one iLXJ:ZEi—%E?%%KﬁE%’EP BR—E RN
mortgage loan receivable amounted to approximately HK$7.3 7,300,000/ 7C (ZZ=F 4 : 497,300,000/
million (2020: HK$7.3 million) on which an allowance for T0) Z UGB R E R D R TE S E A R R
expected credit loss amounting of approximately HK$5.1 1##95,100,000/% 7T ( ZZF Z=F 4 : 43,000,000
million (2020: HK$3.0 million) had been recognised, the BN RIEHR KRS E 2HERNU
respective valuations of the collaterals can fully cover the BHBEEREERZ KBRS BN E
outstanding balances of these loans at the end of reporting Bz B ER N EEARBREEEAT
periods. In respect of the mortgage loans which have BE - WAKRR
been past due for less than 1 month, the amounts mainly
represent occasional delay in repayment and are not an
indication of significant deterioration of credit quality of
these mortgage loans.
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 16 ELEHRIBEEE
The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised T AERMEFTERRLEZREREEE R
and movements thereon during both years: HEgg):
The related
depreciation
in excess of Impairment
depreciation losses on loan
allowances receivables Others Total
BHTERE ERER
ZEBITE ZBEEE Hit st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx T Fx T
At 1 March 2019 R-ZZ—NEF
=H—H 19 165 45 229
Credit to profit or loss T ABE
(note 9) (KEE9) 34 332 150 516
At 29 February 2020 and RZEZF
1 March 2020 S +jLE|
NZ_T_FTF
=A—H
53 497 195 745
(Credit) charge to profit or (5t A) FIkRIEZE
loss (note 9) (KEE9) 31 337 (150) 218
At 28 February 2021 RIZTEZ—4F
—AZ=+NHRH 84 834 45 963
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17

126

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 ESZRHEHMEWKIE
2021 2020
:—ﬂi — ? — ZE'E
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Non-current JEBNER
Others HAh 2,167 2,740
Current B &R
Trade receivables B 5 R GIE - 700
Deposits and payments in advance e RIBRFEIA 2,843 2,000
Others HAh 102 102
2,945 2,802

Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date
of billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not
impaired as the expected loss rate is close to zero and
expected to be recovered within one year.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented based on
invoice date which approximate to the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

B RYHRIEBRE B BE60RAEH - i
RIEHEBREOTE  #AE 85 MEME KR
EHARRME  WRHR—FRlkE -

%E’\\\Eﬁi&%ﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂlmﬁ@w BHREZ%HER
22 BB REFIRZ REAITAT :

2021 2020

—E——fF —TE-TF

$'000 $'000

Fx Tt

0-60 days 0E60X - 700

Trade receivables that were not past due relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 RERREEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MmeHenegrns RekREEBYEE

cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the following: PATR&IA :
2021 2020
=B —F —EIEREF
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Cash on hand FHEES 6,358 6,326
Cash at banks RITR S 238,946 82,700

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated R4iRA MR EKR ZIHE K
statement of financial position BEeEEY 245,304 89,026
Bank overdrafts (note 19) RITES (MIsE19) - (33,298)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RiFAEELRERZET R

statement of cash flow HeEEY 245,304 55,728
Cash at bank carries interest at prevailing market rates for MIEFEE 2 RITRSRBITHHAEGE
both years.
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18

128

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’'D)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash flow as
cash flows from financing activities.

18

RERBSSEY (H)
RETE RS2 BRYEE:

TREIAKERERE T cBERZH 2
B ETEERREMFRSES RETDME
EZBERBEEREENARKESREBRN
HERLRERDPER/RERERD 2HER
BzaE-

Lease
Bank loans liabilities

RTEY HEAE

Loans
from the
immediate Debt

Other holding  securities  Accrued
loans  company issued interest Total

EEZR ERT

HE®R 2QRAzER EBEZ  EHAE At

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
At 1 March 2020 R-Z-E2E
=A—H 70,454 24,343 124,112 104,000 162,684 2,603 488,196
Changes from financing RERERS
cash flows (Note) MELEE
(PffzE) (55,591) (11,109)  (100,800) (56,500) - (20,532)  (244,532)
Non-cash change Fatka 1)
COVID-19-related rent 20198 A E R
concession (Note 28(a)) HEEEES
(HE28(@)) - (694) - - - - (694)
Finance costs incurred BELZRHE
A - 1,142 - - 126 19,659 20,927
At 28 February 2021 R-B=--%
“B=+NH 14,863 13,682 23,312 47,500 162,810 1,730 263,897
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )
18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D) 18 HRE&ERBELEEY (1)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing RMETEBEEZ2AEHR: (F)
activities: (CONT'D)

Loans
from the
immediate Debt
Lease Other holding  Securities  Accrued
Bank loans liabilities loans  company issued Interest Total

ERER ERfT
RTER HEEE HtEX 2FIzZER  GEEF  EHAR st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T Tr

At 1 March 2019 R-E-1F
=A—-H 78,683 26,325 265,232 94,000 162,565 3,125 629,930
Changes from financing ~ REBERSE
cash flows (Note) mEZE
(FizE) (8229)  (12,138)  (141,120) 10,000 = (37,229)  (188,716)
Non-cash change FReEH
New lease arrangements ¥ EZH:
(Note 28(b)) (Fi5E28(b)) = 8,615 = = = = 8,615
Finance costs incurred BELZEE
5% = 1,541 = - 119 36,707 38,367

At 29 February 2020 RZBZ-2&

—B=thH 70,454 24,343 124,112 104,000 162,684 2,603 488,196

Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds from and Wi RensEmeGfeReneRPEBIERAA

repayments of loans from the immediate holding company, ZEFR EMERRBITERZABHRERE
other loans and bank loans in the consolidated statement of ORFE o

cash flows.
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19 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

130

19 RITERREX

The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as follows: RITERRBEZHFRFAT
2021 2020
bt —ToEF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt

Unsecured bank overdrafts (note a) ERFIRITES (HiEa) - 33,298

Bank loans, secured (note b) IRITEFR > BHEF (Hizb) - 40,000

Bank loans, unsecured (note ¢) IRITER ST (Mizkc) 14,863 30,454

14,863 70,454

Total bank loans and overdrafts RITER LB BT 14,863 103,752

Notes: Mt -

(@)  As at 28 February 2021, unsecured bank overdraft facilities (@ RZZTZ—F-A=+/\B WBARERH
of HK$41.5 million (2020: HK$41.5 million) were provided to 41,500,000/ 7T ( —ZZF =4 : 41,500,000/
the subsidiaries and utilised to the extent as disclosed above. ) EEARITEIRE  WEBA EXAEKE
As at 29 February 2020, the bank overdrafts carried floating S RZTTF_A=-1+NB RITEXIR
interest rate ranging from prime rate minus 0.75% to prime N T HREBEFER0.75% EHEEFIEM1.5%
rate plus 1.5% per annum with repayment on demand clause. ZFENFEFEE B - WH IR E SR ER R

(b)  As at 28 February 2021, uncommitted secured revolving bank by RZT=Z—F-—A=+/\A HEBERRESF
loan facility of the lower of HK$50.0 million (2020: HK$50.0 BEAFAEFBRR|RTEANE 28R
million) and a certain percentage of the aggregate principal 50,000,000 7T ( =& =F4 : 50,000,000/
amount of the mortgage loan receivables of a subsidiary L) RME AR E R EER T IRT 2 BYRE
which are then charged to the banks were obtained. The EHRERANSBB2ETADLZRES -
tenor for the facility ranged from one to six months as BERMAE—EAEATE  AZMERQ A
selected by the subsidiary. The available uncommitted banking BE o LET RERIGIER - A B A 2 EAE
facility after taking into consideration of the drawdown was $R717RNE A50,000,0008 L (— T T F :
HK$50.0 million (2020: HK$10.0 million). The uncommitted 10,000,000/ 7T ) © A A EABRRITER
secured revolving bank loan facility was secured by R LARREI(EAY/&114,500,0008 7 (ZE=F
certain mortgage loan receivables with a carrying value of % :131,100,000% 7 ) 2 & TREBUZBERE
approximately HK$114.5 million (2020: HK$131.1 million). As RIEER - R TF_A=+1A RTE
at 29 February 2020, the bank loans carried floating interest FIER=(EAABARITAZERE ([BEBRITEAE
rate of three months Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate WwE ) MA% 2 FEEFEETE -

("HIBOR") plus 4% per annum.

() As at 28 February 2021, unsecured bank loan facilities of (© RZZZ—F—A=+N\B AAREKBEA
approximately HK$34.4 million (2020: HK$30.5 million) were AER 934,400,000 (ZE =T F
provided to the Company and the subsidiaries and utilised to 30,500,000 7T ) M MRITE KA E - WE
the extent as disclosed above. As at 28 February 2021 and 29 AEXFEBESE RZT_—F_A=TN
February 2020, the bank loans carried floating interest rate AR=—Z=TF-_A=+NB RITEFERN
ranged from prime rate minus 0.75% to prime rate plus 1.5% T HEBEFMEH0.75% EHEEFRM.5% 2
per annum. TFEFEREFTE

During the year, the Group had fulfilled all the financial FA AEEERTASERITHEETZMAE

covenants, if any, under the Group’s banking facilities and

all ba

nking facilities were guaranteed by the Company and

secured by certain loan receivables held by the Group.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BE#HEEEERER QA
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

20 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

21

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

20 EFFERAREMENRKE

2021 2020

—E-—F T TF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Accrued interest expenses FEET A BRI 1,730 2,603
Accrued expenses EETBRMAY 2,711 2,001
Provision for long services payment RERTS SR 616 1,200
Other payable and deposit received HoAth fE T 308 & B W EUR S 1,105 900
6,162 6,704

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

OTHER LOANS

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group
obtained uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from
an independent third party. The limit of the facilities is the
lower of HK$439.0 million (2020: HK$439.0 million) and
a certain percentage of the aggregate principal amount of
certain mortgage loan receivables of the subsidiaries which
are then sub-charged/sub-mortgaged to the independent
third party. The facilities are interest-bearing at Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC") prime
rate plus 2% per annum (2020: HSBC prime rate plus 2%
per annum) and the tenor for the facilities is one year.

As at 28 February 2021, the available uncommitted loan
facilities after taking into consideration of the drawdown
was HK$128.5 million (2020: HK$18.0 million). These loan
facilities were secured by certain mortgage loan receivables
for the Group with a carrying value of approximately
HK$189.8 million (2020: HK$177.6 million).

21

PR FERH B MR R B BN FURTR N — F R4
IBRIZERIEE -

HE K
BE_Z-_—F-_A-+/N\BILFE KEEH
—RBUFE = RS EABARFERE N
& - BRIBNE R 58 5439,000,0008 T ( — &=
T4 : 439,000,000 7T ) X% EH B R R & By
BRI RIEFZBBYE = h 25 T RERE
BEAERACBBZETAED L ZBRIES - &
BRES LEELRTARAR ([EE]) RE
BRENFE2% (ZE_FF ELRESRF
RIMNFE2% )t ERMERPLE—F -

RZEBE-_—F-A=-+\H &z RERERIK
TH > ARz EAEERREE A128,500,000/8
7T (ZZ =4 :18,000,000/870) ° Lt EE R
L& AN & E AR {E4) 4 189,800,000/ 7T ( =
T T4 : 177,600,000 7T ) 2 & T REUKILIE
IR E R -
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

22 LOANS FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING 22 HEEEZERARZEN
COMPANY
During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group HE-Z-—F-A-+NBLFE KEEB
obtained an unsecured revolving loan facility from the EEZERAFDMG —EEEHBERERRE
immediate holding company with a facility limit of HK$200.0 Eb & PR %EE A200,000,0008 7T (ZFE -5 F :
million (2020: HK$200.0 million). The loans are interest- 200,000,000/87C) ° 2 ZEERIL5% 2 FF| =
bearing at 5% per annum (2020: 5% per annum). (ZB-TF 5% 2FFR)HE -
As at 28 February 2021, the available loan facility RZBEZ—FZA=Z+N\H ' L RERR
after taking into consideration of the drawdown was HIE AIBAZERRELA152,500,000%
approximately HK$152.5 million (2020: HK$96.0 million) and 7L (ZZF=Z% : 96,000,000/ ) ' MR =
the accrued interest payable as at 28 February 2021 was T —F-_AZTN\B ENEFGHNELER
approximately HK$23,000 (2020: HK$198,000). 23,0008 7T (ZZF =4 : 198,000 7T) °
23 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED 23 SRITEEES
2021 2020
—E=-—F —TEF
$'000 $'000
Tt +t
Current mE 74,967 =
Non-current ERH 87,843 162,684
162,810 162,684

The debt securities are unsecured, denominated in HKD,
interest-bearing ranging from 6% to 7% per annum (2020:
6% to 7% per annum) with interest coupon being paid
semi-annually and will be matured between 2021 and 2025.
All debt securities issued are measured at amortised cost.

132  0Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B %= &R AER A A
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movement in equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company's individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

24 EXR - ERRE

(a)

iz 2E

ARBREESEHEK S Hﬂ%ﬂ@ﬂﬁﬂik s
HRZHEFN A ERED R AR
EEREK DD RFNEF R E ﬁF
LN

The Company FANAY=T |
(Accumulated
Capital losses)
Share redemption Retained
Notes  Share capital premium Other reserve reserve profits Total
(RitER)
(i B REE AftfiE  EARERE REER @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
At 1 March 2019 R=2-71%=R
-8 19,385 90,151 56,964 1,999 4818 163681
Profit and total comprehensive MR REEMA
income for the year &% - - - - 306,026 306,026
Interim dividend declared and ~ NERERRIEZ
paid during the year hERE 24(b) - (20,742) - - - (20,742)
Final dividends approved in 5 HEEEH AL
respect of the previous RERIEFZ
year and paid during the RERE
year 24(b) = (14,151) = = - (14,151)
At29 February 2020 and ~ W=Z=FF=f
1 March 2020 ZthER
“B-EFZf
=g 19,385 55,258 56,964 1,999 301,208 434,814
Profit and total comprehensive  EREFIR2EMA
income for the year et - - - - 4,613 4,613
Purchase of own shares BEEaRA 24(c)i) (61) (1,736) - 61 - (1,736)
Final dividends approved in 5 FEFEHEY
respect of the previous RENER 2
year and paid during the AERE
year 24(b) - (16,812) - - - (16,812)
Interim dividends declared RENERRIERZ
and paid during the year hERE 24(b) - (15,652) - - - (15,652)
Special dividends approved 5 EEFEIEY
in respect of the previous RENER 2
year and paid during the BRIRE
year 24(b) - (5,410) - - - (5,410)
At 28 February 2021 R=Z=-%
ZAZtNR 19,324 15,648 56,964 2,060 305,821 399,817
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 X -ZERRKE (&)

134

(CONT'D)
(b) Dividends (b) KA
Dividends payment during the year: FAZTHIRE. :
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Dividends recognised as distribution MRERNERRDIRZIE -
during the year:
2021 Interim dividend - 0.81 cents (2020: —ZT = —FrhHIKE — iﬂﬁ
2020 interim dividend 1.07 cents) per 081l (=E==F
share _7_2¢EFHHH§E'!%
f%1.074) 15,652 20,742
2020 Final dividend - 0.87 cents (2020: TE-TERHKE — Hﬁ
2019 final dividend 0.73 cents) per 0. 871IJJ (=2 =F
share jliﬂi,ﬁﬂﬂx%
%073M) 16,812 14,151
2020 Special dividend - 0.28 cents (2020: — T - TEEFIIRS —
nil) per share fz0.281l (===
z) 5,410 -
Subsequent to the end of reporting periods, a final WMEHRRE EFCERpEBET = —

dividend of 0.64 cents (2020: 0.87 cents) and a special
dividend of 0.48 cents (2020: 0.28 cents) in respect of
the year ended 28 February 2021 per share has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B ¥ EHERERE QT

FZA-+NBLEFERNABRESE
0.641l (ZZ=FF : §%0.871L) K3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BXR -#ZEEKRE (&)
(CONT'D)

(c) Share capital () E&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZERBEEITEKRA
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
Note Par value shares shares
B sE HE BoEA LiEREE
$ ‘000 $'000
7T T & F
Authorised: ERE
At 28 February 2021 and R-ZT——4F
29 February 2020 —A=-+t)N\B
LT -FF
—_A=+AhH 0.01 100,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: CR{TRAR:

At 1 March 2019, R-E—hE
29 February 2020 and =A—H-
1 March 2020 —ETF
—A=-t+hH
;ZFEZTF
=A—8 0.01 1,938,468 19,385
Purchase of own shares  f&E 8 &A% %D 24(c)(ii) 0.01 (6,096) 61)
28 February 2021 —E-—4%-H
—+NH 0.01 1,932,372 19,324
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONT'D)
(c) Share capital (CONT'D)
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (CONT'D)
The holders of shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All shares rank equally with regard to
the Company'’s residual assets.
(ii) Purchase of own shares

136

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the
Company repurchased 6,096,000 shares (2020:
nil) of the Company on The Stock Exchange with
prices ranging from HK$0.260 to HK$0.305. The
total consideration paid for these shares was
approximately HK$1,736,000. All these shares

24 EXR - -#FERRE (&)

() B=A& (&)
(i) ZEREZBITRK (&)
Hﬁf’\ﬁﬁ}\ﬁT’EWHXWHTE/ i)
W HERAATEE EHERR
{T‘x T FTERMEARR R 2 Tk

BEHZHBRFMHA-

(i) FBEE 5K G
HE-_Z-_—F-_FA-_+N\BHLHF
B ARAIREERFTEN F0.260

BILZO. 305/%752FT%B§@$
76,096,000k (ZF =%

/) e Eﬁ&tﬁﬂwﬁaﬁz,\m&ﬁﬁm
1,736,000 7T - T L ERHER

were cancelled by 28 February 2021. - —FZA=+/\BAFEH-
For the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZZT-—F-A=-+N\ALF
2
Number
of shares Aggregate
Month repurchased Purchase price per share consideration
2igeE
A& R & B BRBEE BRE
('000) Highest Lowest ($°000)
(Fh) &= RIE (F7)
March 2020 —TTF
= 4,432 $0.300 $0.260 1,253
April 2020 “T-THF
M A 1,200 $0.305 $0.280 346
May 2020 T
AA 464 $0.300 $0.295 137
Total et 6,096 1,736
Pursuant to section 37(3) of the Companies Law RIEHRESHERANEFEITONE ARAFIZE %

of the Cayman Islands, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the repurchased shares. Pursuant to 37(4) of
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, an
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of approximately HK$61,000 was
transferred from share premium to the capital
redemption reserve. The payments for purchase
of own shares with approximately HK$1,736,000
were charged to share premium.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BE#HEEEERER QA
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EMERRDESE37( 4 )E B HEKROEEL
61,0008 L2 EESBEERD CEEREE
NIEE M - EEE B FRDER 21,736,000
BILE BRI B ER R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 & --#ERRKRE (&)
(CONT’D)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Distributability of reserves

There is no section in the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s
memorandum and article of association governing
the distribution of reserves. At 28 February
2021, the aggregate amount of reserve available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately HK$378,433,000
(2020: $413,430,000), being the total amount of
share premium, other reserve and retained profits
(accumulated losses).

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company
may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

On 5 February 2013, Oi Wah Holding Limited
entered into an agreement to acquire the
amounts due to shareholders by Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Limited totalling HK$44,963,406
by issuing 1,000 shares at HK$1.00, as fully-
paid shares, to three of the shareholders of the
Company. The acquisition has been reflected as
a reduction in the amounts due to shareholders
and a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Other reserve

On 18 February 2013, the then shareholders
transferred the entire equity interest in Oi Wah
Holding Limited to the Company, in return,
the Company issue 9,999,999 shares, as fully-
paid shares to Kwan Lik Holding Limited as
the consideration. The difference between the
historical carrying value of equity acquired and
acquisition consideration is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Other reserve”.

(d) REZMEERE®

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

REZ MBS REHE
FERESRRERANAG ZHEBE
BAARERARITERERED
E2Bfi-MN—ZTBE=-_—F=-A=+N\
B AR el RE 2 Al DIk
#HARAX) 5378,433,0008 70 (&2 —
T4 413,430,000/ 7T ) - BIRR D
wmiE - HinfEE R RN (REHES
B) 21858 -

R E

REFAEREREE  ARALZKRND
i ERR A HEBE D RSOR MR T
R - HERBEEE D RIS E
Bi& ARBAIRIEREBBERX
REILPACT R

N

R-—_ZE—=9F_HAHBH ' 0i Wah
Holding Limited&] 37 % - LA i8R
KRB =ARFREIT1,0001R R E
BE1.008 T2 BERG - WiEE &
44,963,406 L BEREEE
FRA B ET IR RIE - 2 EE R &
JE < AR R SR IEDR D I B S R R AR
N

Bt fe
RZE—=F-A+N\H &K
BRERMARFEZEENOI Wah
HoldingLimited Z 2 &f i% A 4 %5 -
AAFAMmMAKwan Lik Holding
Limited%779,999,999/% £ & & 17 1E
ARE - AT B R 2 BT R E R
WERBZZEER R —EERE
B Wa A [ Efb ] -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONT'D)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (CONT'D)
(v) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the
nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

(vi) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. The Group was not subject to external
imposed capital requirements, except for the
loan covenants attached to the interest-bearing
borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
cash and cash equivalents net of bank loans and
overdrafts, other loans, loans from the immediate
holding company, debt securities issued and
equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company, comprising paid in capital and reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to
its debt position. The Group’s strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position with the debt equity ratio, being the
Group's total borrowings over its total equity, no
more than 150%, and ensure there was adequate
working capital to repay its debt obligations.
As at 28 February 2021 the Group and the
Company’s debt equity ratio were 26.2% (2020:
55.2%) and 44.4% (2020: 41.0%) respectively.
No change was made on the Group's overall
strategy.

138  0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited SR % (= BRI AR A 7
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(d)

HEZETRE K ()

v)

(vi)

EXEE#E
EXABEFEHECBRRO 2@
=

BrEE
AEBERALZ EBABDRE
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RSP R ERIEIRR 2 B8
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 HEEKREERAFE

VALUE
Categories of financial instruments ST EER
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEE
$'000 $'000
ST Tt
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost (including BB EKATEZ CREE
cash and cash equivalents) (BREREMREEEY) 1,087,808 1,270,762
Financial assets measured at FVPL - BEAFEFABRZ S/
mandatory & —oR 109,416 121,211
1,197,224 1,391,973
Financial liabilities SR8 E
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEENATEZSRIAE 254,031 500,052
Financial risk management objectives and policies TrEREEEERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, accruals and other payables, bank loans and
overdrafts, other loans, loans from the immediate holding
company and debt securities issued. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

As the core business of the Group is engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and
mortgage loans, the main risks associated with its business
are credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly liquid
position.

AEEZIZSRTABRRKRET BEHME
WA RERRSEFEY BHEARAE
hENRIE RITERNEX  EMER EB
EIRARCERMEETERES AHRERT
BZFHBR AN ERRE - EZE SR T AN
MzRREEMSAR (FXEAR)  EERR
KRREE R - A RBIAREZ TR 2 BR
FNTX -BEEEEELERZERR - AR
KA EREEEE -

HRAREZZLRBEANEENFTHAEMA
B (ERAEERREBERERR) X7 thE
HEBHAZIZERRAEERREERKE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

140

(a)

Credit risk management

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to its loan receivables. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the Group have established policies and systems
for the monitoring and control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic
approach in running its business in an efficient way,
including the adoption of internal control procedures
for risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative
basis by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of
quantitative risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group
has adopted internal control procedures including
the identification and evaluation of ownership and
obtaining an accurate valuation of personal property.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio ranging from 50% - 85%, depending on the type
of collateral and the valuation is made at the point
of granting the loan. The maximum exposure of the
credit risk arising from pawn loan business at the end
of each reporting period is the carrying amount of the
pawn loan receivables as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B ¥ EHERERE QT
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TRRAREERREREE (&)

(a)

EEREEE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

- Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

- Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

- Watches quoted from either retail listed prices or
parallel import wholesale prices

- Consumer electronic products quoted from
updated pricelists of second-hand consumer
electronic products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in
repayment of the pawn loan if they have not redeemed
the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by the end
of the term of the pawn loan. At the Group's sole
discretion, a grace period of up to six weeks may be
provided to customers after the end of the loan period
during which the Group may allow the customers to
renew the pawn loan and/or redeem the collateral.
The Group will take possession of the collateral if
the customer has not redeemed the collateral or
renewed the pawn loan by the end of the loan period
or the grace period provided. Repossessed assets are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 3 and the carrying amount
of repossessed assets as at 28 February 2021 was
approximately HK$6,228,000 (2020: HK$9,292,000).
The Group will proceed to dispose the collateral within
a reasonable time after possession.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

E\ji%@lzﬁ EE&/-\SF{E (lllﬁ)

TREREEREREE (&)

(a)

CEERBEE (&)
NRFER 2 M R E BT EEE R X -

- REEFEMBIAEZER
- EORERMRZELER

—  TEEEARTAEORBERS
B2 FHRER

- —FHEBETEMmIEHMEBRRAM
B HBEEFERER

S HEAPR AR AT - MR P I ERE D
(E# ﬁ;% REFPRIWRA
EEMEENR - ANEEA2ENIE
&E%%*%ﬁ %&mgﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁ
EE2EHERE  REEBERN A5£E
ﬂ?ﬁﬁééﬁzﬁm&/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

cRERHEAR SR M 2 ER AL R AT
ﬁ%ﬁlﬁ%@ﬁﬁmiéfﬁgﬁﬁ
REB K E BRI - LU ENE ERIEH
H3E SR BERAR R —4F
“AZt+NB KROEEZEEREASD
6,228,000/ 70 (ZZE=F 4 : 9,292,000
BIL) cARBEREEERRECAE
RS H o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

142

(a)

Credit risk management (CONT'D)

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of
risk management, the Group usually grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property, which
is generally lower than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for
mortgages which can be as high as 70%. In a few
cases if the customers request loans with the loan-
to-value ratio of over 70%, approval from the chief
executive officer is required. For the valuation of the
property, the Group will make reference to a third
party valuer and/or the internet valuation services
provided by banks in Hong Kong. The Group holds
collateral against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties located in Hong Kong. The
Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by
the property held as collateral, with reference to the
estimated market value of the property at the grant
date. The Group may take possession of assets held
as collateral through court proceeding or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers. It disposes the
property by auction once receiving the possession.

Management has overall responsibility for the Group's
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the
Group’s loan portfolio. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of loan receivables
individually at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. For trade receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
ECL by using a provision matrix, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience, as well as the general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 6.3% (2020: 8.1%) and 21.6% (2020: 33.1%)
of the total loan receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Although most of the customers are from Hong Kong,
the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base is large and unrelated.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables are set out in note 15.

The Group has developed its processes for measuring
ECL including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation
of forward-looking information and the methodology
used to measure ECL. The Group has policies and
procedures in place to appropriately maintain the
models used to assess and measure ECL.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

j‘i&ﬂl}ﬁﬁqfiﬁl\qZﬁ (lllﬁ)

TREREEREREE (&)

(a)

EERBREZE (&)
AEBAZEERREEZIBERF
Z AR E  MENEERKRES
F R A AN S B B B P 1 SR B TR 2
BERERATR -RMELK ERERR
B263% (ZZE-TFE:81% )N21.6%
ZETF :33.1% ) D RIREAEE R
ABEPRAKREF -

BEABOEFKEETR  BRAME 2K
FEDAR  IBEREFEREART
HREE -

RBELERERER EAHTFHA
BER N TAREET SEETAE
7o

ERASEEY B RUERMELEER
- EERBEERENMEIS -
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(CONT'D)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BiEKEERAFE (&)
VALUE (CONT'D)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SREBEERERBE (&)
(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D) (a) FEEREBEXR (&

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loans AEBRBEEREESEEEXBETIEAT

receivable and trade and other receivables according to FIPE B D W E R R B 5 & H th FE UK

3 different stages under the ECL model: HZEEEXR:

. Stage 1:financial assets without significant . FIPEE - BVRERAREERR
increase in credit risk since initial recognition WEANEIE M SREE  EEER
where loss allowance is calculated based on ERE12E AR EEBEHE
12-month ECL

e Stage 2:financial assets with significant increase o  F2BER: BYHRERAREERR
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss NIgE N eRLEE - HBERER
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL BEHBEREEEEHE

e Stage 3: credit impaired assets where loss e FIRE EFEREEE HEBER
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL EREEHEREEBEHE

The credit quality classification of loans receivable and TRHFIRAREBEREESERENX 2

their respective interest receivables using the Group's BREFRRESBZEEFNEZEEE =

ECL model is set out in the table below: pay

28 February 2021
—E-—%F=-HA=+N\H
Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
Stage 1 - not credit  ECL - credit
12-month ECL impaired impaired Total
F2REREH  E3RREH
F1RR12A RBHUCERSE FEAHEEER
EHEEERE - KEERE —EERE wmEt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Loan receivables e E TR 813,607 - 30,092 843,699
Less: impairment B RER
allowance - - (5,053) (5,053)
Loan receivables net FEWE SR ($0Bk
of impairment BB
allowance 813,607 - 25,039 838,646
Trade and other B 5 RE AR
receivables FIA 3,858 - - 3,858
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(a)

Credit risk management (CONT'D)

As at 28 February 2021, a mortgage loan receivable
amounting to approximately HK$22,754,000 (2020:
nil) has transferred from stage 2 to stage 3 due to
significant financial difficulties of the debtor.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

25 BiEREERAFVE (&)

TRRAREERREREE (&)

(a)

CERREE (&)
R-E-—F-_HA-+N\B ERREE
FR#22,754,00087C (— T -F4F : ) i
FRBREETEIRE RAAEBATR
e B K B 7 IR 8 o

29 February 2020

—2-FF-_A=-+AhH

Stage 2
Lifetime ECL Stage 3
Stage 1 — not credit Lifetime ECL —
12-month ECL impaired credit impaired Total
F22REEREH  FE3EEREH
FIRER12EA FEHEEEE HEHEESE
EHEEBE —REERE —(EERE #5
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt T
Loan receivables e & R 1,150,059 23,038 7,338 1,180,435
Less: impairment R E R
allowance - - (3,011) (3,011)
Loan receivables net of B EFX (k&
impairment allowance WIEREE) 1,150,059 23,038 4,327 1,177,424
Trade and other B 5 &AM fE
receivables W skIA 4,312 - = 4,312
(b) Market risk management (b) THREMRELE
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the AEEEB T EEBNEESESL 2 S
financial risks of changes in interest rate. [Z\Bgz o
Interest rate risk FIE R

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to certain loan receivables, loans from the
immediate holding company, debt securities issued and
lease liabilities which carried at fixed rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate mortgage loan
receivables, bank loans and overdrafts, other loans and
cash at banks.

A& B IR EE N G R E T RK
X BEEZERABZENR DHBTEHR
EFhHERABEH I A FEMNERER -

ARG B I Y ELE B B R EUIR B E K
RITERMEX R ERRIRTREH
2R EREFRE R o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

146

(b)

()

Market risk management
Interest rate risk (CONT'D)

It is the Group’s policy to keep its certain of its
mortgage loan receivables, bank loans and overdrafts
and other loans at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of prime rate, HIBOR and HSBC prime
rate.

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming that the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis points (2020: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At 28 February 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
(2020: 100 basis points) in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's profit after
tax by approximately HK$3,247,000 (2020:
HK$7,914,000).

Liquidity risk management

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions and immediate
holding company to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long-term. The Directors are satisfied
that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when fall due in the foreseeable
future.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (CONT'D)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities and leased liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank overdrafts with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

BERERER A FE (&)

TREREEREREE (&)

(c)

MEBETEBEE (&
TRAMAEBRHEMRIRAHORR
Reng (BRRanMXy (1EEE)
RIFRERRBIT M ERFE ZHE) 7
BZeMABERHERABZRHREAON
R UERAEEABERBERAZRER
H-BRME  TwiRTEBTEEER
Z BRG] - B R B SR AE R IR BRAT
BXINARERHERA - EMIEITESRE
BZBHBEREOTERBHEE

28 February 2021

—EB--H-A=1+\H

Total
Within 1 More than 1 More than 2  contractual
year or on year but less years but less undiscounted Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years cash flow amount
MERDS 15U E 2P E BHRER
RER BLR25E BORSE REREBARE RREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Accruals and other B ER R
payables H e
HIE 5,546 - - 5,546 5,546
Bank loans and RITEF KRB
overdrafts (Note) 53
(FEE) 16,392 - - 16,392 14,863
Other loans HihEH 49,875 - - 49,875 47,500
Loans from the BEERAR
immediate holding 2B
company 24,944 - - 24,944 23,312
Debt securities issued BETER
Feba 79,564 69,775 31,041 180,380 162,810
176,321 69,775 31,041 277,137 254,031
Lease liabilities MEaE 10,274 2,948 1,140 14,362 13,682
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

148

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)

(c) Liquidity risk management (CONT'D)

BERERER A FE (F)

TREREEEERBE (&)

()

MEBELEBEE (H)

29 February 2020

—E-EF-A-1+ANH
Total
More than 1 More than 2 contractual
Within 1 year  year but less years but less  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand  than 2 years  than 5 years cash flow amount
P1ER, 1 L 266PAE BHVREEER
REX BOR2E BLRSE BRETERE REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T F
Accruals and other EETER K
payables HA R
FE 5,504 - - 5,504 5,504
Bank loans and RITEHRE
overdrafts (Note) 3
(PREE) 107,018 - - 107,018 103,752
Other loans HER 132,800 - - 132,800 124,112
Loans from the HEERAR
immediate holding ZER
company 104,096 - - 104,096 104,000
Debt securities issued BEITER
EH 9,790 89,290 96,130 195,210 162,684
359,208 89,290 96,130 544,628 500,052
Lease liabilities HEEE 11,803 10,274 4,088 26,165 24,343
Note: Bank overdrafts with a repayment on demand clause are Hfat: MR EREBREERZBRITEZIIA E

included in the “within one year or on demand” time
band in the above maturity analysis. At 29 February
2020, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
of the bank overdrafts amounted to approximately
HK$33,298,000 (2021: nil). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the Directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that the bank overdrafts will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to approximately HK$33,811,000 (2021: nil).

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited B ¥ EHERERE QT

=
)

ME ST (R FEAKIRER ] B
R-R-_ZB_TF_A_+NA ETE
2 ARBRE ARG #BFEX) 533,298,000
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25

VALUE (CONT'D)

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT’D)

(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable in accordance with the Group’s accounting

policy.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

PBEREERQVE (&)
SMARERHEREE (#)

(d) @I EAZAFHETE
TRERREREMRERATENEZS
BMTAZOH BAFERBEASE S
BRATEREZIBER/SFIEIMN-

28 February 2021
—B-_-f-A=+NH

Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
A¥E ATEFEDEAUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
- F 28 3K
$'000 $000 $'000 $°000
Fit T Ft T
Recurring fair value EEEAFE
measurement FTE
Financial assets: DRERE
- Loan receivables at — & AFAE
FVPL STABRZ
FEH &R 109,416 - - 109,416
29 February 2020
—ECEF-AZ+TAB
Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
NS NEEFESERUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ERF kY E3M
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
Recurring fair value "KEEAFE
measurement FTE
Financial assets: SRLEE -
— Loan receivables at /NS
FVPL SFABEZ
JEME K 121,211 = = 121,211

There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 in

both years.

MIEFE - B4R B2R N EIR 2 EE
-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EMEERAFEE (&)

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies SREBEERERBE (&)
(CONT'D)
(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments (d) Z=ETAZNFEE (&

(CONT'D)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of loan receivables at FVPL is determined
using discounting the contractual future cash flow. The

fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount rate.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level
3 fair value measurements is as follows:

EIMATF I BOEN
RATE AR ERER AFET
EBURANARAE RENEE AT
CEE LU EES TR

FIRATHEABLBRENZ ZDN
T

2021 2020
—B-—F —TFF
$'000 $'000
Tt Ft
At 1 March R=A—H 121,211 120,977
Loans granted EEBER 408,932 472,169
Loans matured ERHER (420,736) (471,909)
Net gain (loss) recognised in consolidated — F4R& 128 K E A2 EUW A
statement of profit or loss and other FiER 2 W (B518)
comprehensive income pEieL 9 (26)
At 28 February/29 February R=ZA=+NRB/~
—A=+AhH 109,416 121,211
Total net gain (loss) for the year included R&EZ—A=+/N\B~
in consolidated statement of profit or ZAZThBLFE
loss and other comprehensive income FFAERE B R EAM
for the year ended 28 February/29 PERARZFAF
February Iz (B1E) 858 9 (26)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
as at the end of the reporting periods are not
materially different from their fair values.
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26

27

for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

The group sub-leases out a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to five years, lease payments are usually increased at
the end of the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of
the leases includes variable lease payments.

As at 28 February 2021 and 29 February 2020, undiscounted
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group
in future periods as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

26 REFHEHAIE
AEBESDHEA
AEEBECLURESRLEYE - REZNS
EHREA—ERE - MERE—RNASHE

RKEFFHA URMMBHEE - I EREREA &
FEFKIE -
RZE-_—F_A-_F+N\BER-_ZE-_FF_H

ZHNB ARERR KRR ER N RS B
EAZ AR EHEE T RBRAENIA
LI

2021 2020

—E-—F ZETF

$'000 $'000

Tt T

Within one year —&FN 1,330 2,413
After one year but within two years —FIREMFEA 720 1,947
After two year but within three years MERB=FA 360 720
After three year but within four years =FRENFR - 360
2,410 5,440

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

27 EXBEAIRS

BRIt

EGEAMBRRAMENABEEZ2RZI R

BERIN ARBEERI A TEABESRS

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEASEH
2021 2020
—E—fF —ECTE
$'000 $'000
Fx Tz
Salary and other benefits e RHEAMER 7,306 7,129
Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAT 5,369 5,040
Contributions to MPF BIE SR 90 90
12,765 12,259

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

ARREERTBETE A B 2 H B i 2 B
ZBEE2EMARRLMEBEEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(b) Transactions with other related parties

During the year, the Group entered into transactions

27

EXBELXRS (&)

(b) ERHEMEAESZX

FR-AE @E’\‘A AR X5 B2 HEEE

with related parties in the ordinary course of its AR 2RS0T
business as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
$'000 $'000
T Ft
Rental payments paid to FAT &R XN 2 BE RN
— Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited —ZR&EEBFRAH
(“Kwan Chart Holding") (B%X£E]) 960 960
— Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited —HRBEFARAA
(“Kwan Chart Estate”) (IBREX]) 660 660
— Mr. Chan Chart Man —BREXEE 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits placed with FUTEFTFAZHEIES
— Kwan Chart Holding —ZX&H 160 160
- Kwan Chart Estate —HREX 110 110
— Mr. Chan Chart Man —PRE kA 180 180
Management fee deposit placed with MUTEFTFAZLERE
i
— Kwan Chart Estate —HERBEX 23 22

The Group entered into a 2-year lease agreement in
respect of the rental of a property from Kwan Chart
Holding, a company with common beneficial owners
with the Company. During the year ended 28 February
2021, the amount payable by the Group under the
lease was HK$80,000 per month (2020: HK$80,000 per
month). As at 28 February 2021, the carrying amount
of such lease liabilities was nil (2020: HK$256,000).
The lease contract had expired during the year ended
28 February 2021 and the renewal lease term of 1-year
lease was entered into and was classified as short term
lease with monthly rental expense of HK$80,000 at
terms mutually agreed by the parties thereafter.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBEAFRE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b)

Transactions with other related parties (CONT'D)

The Group entered into a 2-year lease agreement in
respect of the rental of a property from Kwan Chart
Estate, a company with common beneficial owners
with the Company. During the year ended 28 February
2021, the amount payable by the Group under the
lease was HK$55,000 per month (2020: HK$55,000 per
month). As at 28 February 2021, the carrying amount
of such lease liabilities was nil (2020: HK$163,000).
The lease contract had expired during the year ended
28 February 2021 and the renewal lease term of
1-year lease entered was classified as short term lease
with monthly rental expense of HK$55,000 at terms
mutually agreed by the parties thereafter.

The Group entered into a 2-year lease agreement in
respect of the rental of a property from Mr. Chan
Chart Man, a director of the Company. During the
year ended 28 February 2021, the amount payable by
the Group under the lease was HK$90,000 per month
(2020: HK$90,000). As at 28 February 2021, the
carrying amount of such lease liabilities was nil (2020:
HK$288,000). The lease contract had expired during
the year ended 28 February 2021 and the renewal
lease term of 1-year lease entered was classified
as short term lease with monthly rental expense of
HK$90,000 at terms mutually agreed by the parties
thereafter.

The Directors consider that all the above related party
transactions during the year were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business.

Note: The Group entered into agreement in respect of the
rental of properties from Kwan Chart Holding and
Kwan Chart Estate, companies with common beneficial
owners with the Company and Mr Chan Chart Man, a
director of the Company.

(b)

et

BEHMEAER RS (H)

AEERABEREX (RAQARAFH
EE=EEAZRR)HE —EYWHEE]
YRFHERE RBE_TSZ—F=
B+t NBLFE AEEREHERE
N2 3B ASA55,0008T (2%
F 8§ HA55,0008L) RZTE=_—F=
A-+N\B tRHEEaGEsEREAT
(ZZE T4 :163,000/87T) - HEALD
NBE-ZE-_—SF-_A-+t)N\BILFEEE
MREBRINMZEERP—F2HESER
MEFRE - AMFA X A55,0008 7T © 3K
MET 4 H KRR RE -

AEERAARREERRXAEERE
—EVEIYRFRERZ REE=Z
——F_A-+NALEFE AEERE
HEREMN Z2HEASHA90,000/8T (=ZF
—ZF : FH90,00087T) c AT —

—A-tNB - EHEAEEaEZEREES
T (T =4 :288,00087) - HEA
ANEBEE—ZE-—F-_A=-+/\BILFE
EmkERI N BB —F2HES S
REEEE - AERAYA90,000/7T 1§
SREFI A EHEERFE

EZRA LRFAMBAETRS IR
—REAXGIRAEEAER —REHE
RRETT

AEERAEREBRAREX (EARFA
BERREBEHEEAZRAR) ARARREER
RXEEHEWERFT L -
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28

29
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
(a)

COVID-19-related rent concession

During the year ended 28 February 2021, the Group
received approximately HK$694,000 (2020: nil)
rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed
payments during the period of severe social distancing
and travel restriction measures introduced to contain
the spread of COVID-19.

(b)

New lease arrangements

During the year ended 29 February 2020, the Group
entered into new arrangements in respect of leased
properties. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately HK$8.6 million (2021: nil) were
recognised at the commencement of the leases.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to the MPF
Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by employees.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future year.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$580,000 (2020: HK$579,000) represents contributions
payable to this scheme by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ =T =-—F A=+ /\BHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

(@  Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

(b)  Loans to a subsidiary are revolving, unsecured, interest-bearing
at 6% (2020: 6%) per annum and repayable on demand.

30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30 &2 ®ZBEHEikRE
THE COMPANY
Notes 2021 2020
B 5E —E-—F ZECTF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIZE 57,064 57,064
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries ARG 7S] a 238,171 253,144
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EUGRIE 256 256
Loans to a subsidiary m—RENERAREZ
BR b 321,240 321,240
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIREFEEY 1,336 1,970
561,003 576,610
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E Mt /IR 1,916 1,656
Bank loans IRITER 14,863 15,453
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG ] a 38,457 17,052
Debt securities issued BRI TEISE S 23 74,967 =
Tax payable FEIBITR 204 2,015
130,407 36,176
Net current assets REEEFH 430,596 540,434
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABER 487,660 597,498
Non-current liability FRBAE
Debt securities issued BEITESE S 23 87,843 162,684
NET ASSETS EEFH 399,817 434,814
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR#HE 24
Capital LN 19,324 19,385
Reserves (G 380,493 415,429
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 399,817 434,814
Notes: Hiaz

() B/ ENMEARCRER/EER RER

(b) M—FEMBRRRE CEFRER BIER 1%
FHE% (ZE-FF:6% )R IIRER(E

7B o
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for the year ended 28 February 2021 BEZ=-ZT=-—F A=+ /\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7T517R )

31 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of reporting periods, the Company has direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are

31 fBATZFHE
RI|EF  AATRTIHBEAT ( FFEA

A RILARE) BEERKAMEELD  FHL

private companies, particulars of which are set out below: T
Place and date of Principal country Issued and fully paid up Attributable equity

Name of company incorporation/establishment  of operation capital/registered capital interest Principal activities
Eﬂﬂﬁiﬁ/ g . E%ﬁ&iﬂiﬁﬁi/

kL HIBHREH FETZEER HMER ElERAER IEXH

2021 2020
-g--% —ZC%F

Directly held subsidiary:

ERRRNELAR:

0i Wah Holding Limited BVI Hong Kong 2,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
31 May 2012 with no par value

0i Wah Holding Limited RERLES &5 2,000k EEEZ RERR
“E-—FRR=1-A EAk

Indirectly held subsidiaries:

BESANELT:

0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending

) 22 March 2000 shares

REMXERARLA Bk &t 10,000,000/ RE LG
“ETRE-A-12H TER

Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
12 April 2012

AEREEEERAA Bk B 1RERR HE QAR
“F-—EMATCA

Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
12 April 2012

EERXEEARAA & & 1RERR HE R
“E-—EMATCA

0i Wah Property Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending

\ 20 February 2014 ‘

BENEEEARAA Bk B 1RERR HE
“F-PmE-A=FA

Oi Wah Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Consultant
4 April 2014

BELRERAA &8 & 1RERR HER
“2-MENAMA

0i Wah Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending

) 29 January 2015 )

BELHARAA Bk B 1RERR HE
“E-1%-A-TNA

0i Wah Mortgage Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Inactive
1 April 2015

BERBERAA &i & 1RE R Ipex
“Z-R4MmA-A

0i Wah Pawnshop Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Inactive
15 February 2016

BEMEERAA & & 1RE R Ipex
ZZ-¥ZAt+aA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years and at the end of both years.
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